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CHAI RVAN JOHN TORGERSON cal | ed the Senate Resources Comrittee neeting
to order at 4:05 p.m Al nenbers were present. Al so present were
Senators Leman and Ellis. Chairman Torgerson announced the conmttee
would hear SJR 201 and that he issued an invitation to four
individuals to testify before the conmttee: Bruce Botel ho, Attorney
General ; Julie Kitka, President of the Al aska Federation of Natives;
D ck Bi shop, Al aska Qutdoor Council; and Loretta Bullard, President
of Kawerak, Inc.

SENATOR HALFORD commented, “I’m just noticing the nake-up of the
room If we could have half the people on the right nove to the left
and half the people on the left nove to the right and everyone
changed in the seating arrangenent, we mght get a negotiation going
t hat woul d produce sonething.”

CHAI RVAN TORGERSON replied, “That’s our goal today.” He then asked
Attorney Ceneral Botelho to address the commttee.

[ THE FOLLON NG | S A VERBATI M TRANSCRI PT]

MR. BRUCE BOTELHO, Attorney General of the State of Alaska: M.
Chairman, that’s why | positioned nyself both in the back and....

CHAI RVAN TORGERSON: | saw that, right in the center.

MR. BOTELHO | hope, M. Chairman that will also reflect ny testinony
in general today. For the record nmy name is Bruce Botel ho, Attorney
Ceneral. | appreciate the opportunity to speak with you today about
SJR 201 and, particularly the seriousness with which | know this
committee and the legislature is approaching what has been a very
divisive issue over the last many years, perhaps |less so over the
broad issue of the inportance of subsistence in Alaska than to who
shoul d be able to nake use of that resource as the highest beneficial
use. The essence - the history, basically, of SIJR 201, is an outcone
of a process started specifically last August when the Governor
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convened a summt of a broad range of Al askans, including the Senate
Presi dent and others, Senator Lincoln, to discuss how we could conme
to resolution. Perhaps what was different in that process from others
was the focus on cultural values - what it is we wanted Alaska to
| ook |i ke and, out of that, again, [indisc.] a renewed effort to pass
a constitutional anmendnent.

The Governor asked 11 Alaskans to meke an attenpt to draft a
constitutional anmendnent that would fulfill the expectations of that
summit and that originally becanme SIR 41 in the |last regul ar session.
It has three elenments, in general terns. The first subsection really
attenpts to declare as public policy our view of the high inportance
and high value we place upon subsistence and the subsistence way of
life of [indisc.] peoples and the role it continues to play in the
state. | know sone have expressed concern about that in terns of
conferring sone special rights. W were quite clear in our commentary
as a group that we did not intend to confer any special rights on any
group of people but that it was inportant for us to provide a vision
to Al aska about what it is we were attenpting to achieve.

Subsection (b) of this proposed anendnent really goes to the heart of
the subsistence issue. M. Chairman, | think it also directly
addresses the issues that you asked us, this afternoon in inviting
testinmony, to address. It provides the priority in the taking of
fish, wildlife and other renewable resources in the follow ng way,
first of all, acknow edging that any use of resources is first
subject to the principle of sustained yield. W’re talking about
harvest abl e surpluses. Second, that when it becones necessary then to
pose restrictions on that harvestable surplus, the customary and
traditional subsistence uses of or by rural residents of the state
shall receive priority over all other consunptive uses. And this is
t he basic, what | would call - describe - the rural priority.

W tried to address the second issue here that is not so nuch tied to
what we call the MDowell decision, but another decision of the
Al aska Suprene Court, Kenaitze v. State, in which the Al aska Suprene
Court struck down one of three provisions in terns of Tier Il. Let ne
just briefly explain — I know that nost of the commttee is famliar
with this but just as a helpful refresher. There are situations when
the harvestable surplus is not sufficient even to neet the needs of
the subsistence or all subsistence users in a given area and the
guestion cones up when that arises who of those users in that area
shoul d have first priority in getting that limted resource and this
is where Tier Il cones in. State law, until the Kenaitze case, and
again, Title VIIl of ANILCA provides the same Tier Il system would
basically say that the people who should be able to first exercise it
shoul d be determned on three factors: the first one their historic
dependence on that resource; second, their proximty to the resource
— how close are they to it vis a vis others; and third, the
avai lability of other resources. The Al aska Suprene Court in the
Kenaitze case and l|argely, perhaps even foreshadowed by MDowell
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itself, when presented with the question said proximty to the
resource, and using that as a factor in determ ning who should have
first crack at it, is unconstitutional under the state constitution

This provision, subsection (b), wwuld mneke <clear that this
|l egislature would be free to enact laws that would reinstate that
provision or that proximty test in Tier 1|l

The third feature of SJR 201 is an authorization, but not a
requirenent, to the legislature to provide for |ower subsistence
priorities after one has satisfied the rural priority, to other
Al askans in preference to personal use, sports use and conmerci al
use. This was the subject of great debate in our own group, nmany
feeling that the one thing you don't want to do is expand the class
of people who should be able to obtain subsistence because the nore
peopl e who participate, again the resource is limted and there are
consequences in that sense, perhaps, against other subsistence users
and, equally inportantly, the nore one can exercise a claim for
subsi stence use, the less that would be available for the other
beneficial uses of +the resource. Qhers have suggested it 1is
inportant to recognize that there are residents of Al aska
particularly in comunities |like Eklutna and the Kenaitzes, who have,
since tinme imrenorial, a subsistence tradition. Through no fault of
their own, conmmunities — urban areas have surrounded them so they
shoul d be able to continue to participate. Another category that has
frequently been nentioned to us are those who have had rural
experiences and now live in urban Al aska but have a direct connection
to customary and traditional uses in rural Alaska and that there
shoul d be sone opportunity for themto participate. In any event, our
solution here was sinply not to solve the issue but to authorize the
| egislature to solve it or address it as it woul d choose.

Those are the three features then M. Chairman. First of all, a
statenment of policy identifying the inportance as a value of
subsi stence and the role it has played and continues to play,
specifically with respect to indi genous peopl es of Al aska.

[THE NEXT PORTION OF ATTORNEY GENERAL BOTELHO S TESTIMONY IS
| NAUDI BLE DUE TO TELECONFERENCE EQUI PMENT PROBLEMS. ]

ATTORNEY GENERAL BOTELHO The second subsection, which grants the
priority itself with respect to Al askans in rural areas — again, | -
under stand under that both rural but, nore specifically, local within
rural and also providing authorizing for proximty to be an el enent
in a Tier Il scheme and the third feature is authorization for |ower
subsi stence priorities.

M. Chairman, this afternoon when you invited us to testify, you
asked us specifically to focus on four principles, which | take to be
factors that you' re looking for in evaluating any constitutional
anendnent that this conmittee would consider. And wth your
permssion, let ne just briefly state them and then go back and
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measure this particular amendnent against those four criteria. The
first was place of residence; that the state constitution needs to be
changed to allow the |legislature to assign a preference for
subsi stence hunting and fishing based on |ocal residence within a
rural subsi stence area. Second, there’'s a rural subsi st ence
[imtation. A subsistence preference nust be limted to subsistence
hunting and fishing in rural Al aska. Third, customary and traditional
uses - a subsistence preference nust be limted to fish stocks and
gane popul ations that have been customarily and traditionally used
for subsistence. And finally, | egislative discretion - the
constitutional anmendnent should be discretionary, that is ‘my’
rather than mandatory, ‘shall.’

M. Chairman, conparing SJR 201 to your first criterion — place of
residence, that is, the legislature should be able to assign a
preference for subsistence hunting and fishing based on |[ocal
residence within a rural subsistence area. And again though, we don’'t
expressly wuse the term rural residence. If you wll look at
subsection (b), we made clear that we're tal king about custonmary and
traditional subsistence uses of that resource by rural residents in
the area of the state in which those customary and traditional uses
have occurred and | would suggest that [indisc.] the termin the area
is really the equivalent of — at your request — that there be a | ocal
resi dence feature. W view that as being the equivalent. [Indisc.]
| ots of forces at work today, not just the force. The second - so, in

short, | believe that this anendnment directly neets your first
criterion.

The second is a rural subsistence limtation — that it nust be a
preference limted to subsistence hunting and fishing in rural

Al aska. Qur clear intent here is to see this as a rural preference,
that is to say we have local within rural but subsistence activities
are a rural activity to be regulated further in a |ocal area.

The third is customary and traditional uses. You declare that the
preference nust be limted to fish stocks and gane popul ati ons that
have been customarily and traditionally used and we expressly make
that clear in lines 14 and 15 where we're tal king about subsistence
uses of those resources that are customary and traditional.

M. Chairman, the one area that we did not neet your test is the
i ssue of discretionary versus nmandatory directive to the |egislature
and acts as a priority. This version at line 11 declares that the
| egi sl ature shall provide, not may. Qur view in drafting this, and
again not wthout extensive debate within the commttee, was that
this would be - this is a directive to the people or to the
| egislature fromthe people that this is such an inportant issue to
be resolved that the legislature really should not be given
di scretion to either deal or not deal with the issue but it was
inmportant that it be conpelled to provide for the priority and not
sinply fromthe standpoint of bringing the state into conpliance with
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ANI LCA that on its nerits, such a priority is just a good value for
Al aska. That’'s what we stand for in terns of protecting a way of life
that nost of us in urban Al aska have not or do not [indisc.] which
we’'re fortunate to see occurring in many parts of our state.

M. Chairman, again [indisc.] approach that limt. 1'm certainly
avai l abl e to answer any questi ons.

CHAI RMAN TORGERSON: Questions for the Attorney General? Senator
Tayl or ?

SENATOR TAYLOR In light of the Bess v. U ner decision, does this
change or constitute a revision of the Constitution or nerely an
amendment ?

ATTORNEY CGENERAL BOTELHO M. Chairman, ny view is that this is in
the nature of an anmendnent and not a revision. | know that there are
some who would see this as altering the state constitution, that it
woul d require a constitutional convention rather than a — sinply a
vote of the people after a vote of the legislature. | know that
people — and I'mwlling to go into detail here — people can argue
that issue. The only way it gets answered, however, if one wants to
defend a good answer [indisc.] spotty, to vote the record of two-
thirds, place it on the ballot, allowit to be challenged, allow the
Suprenme Court, which is the final arbiter of constitutionality of any
provisions in the Constitution to make that deci sion.

SENATOR TAYLOR: Just one fol | ow up?
CHAI RVAN TORGERSON: Senat or Tayl or.

SENATOR TAYLOR Does the Governor’s constitutional anendnent place
the state in conpliance with Title VII1 AN LCA?

ATTORNEY GENERAL BOTELHO. M. Chairman, it does not. The test — what
it does — what it would do — would be to authorize |egislation that
woul d presumably bring the state into conpliance. The test under
Title VIII of ANILCA is whether the state has laws of general
applicability that provide for the priority, that provide for the
participation and definitions that are found in ANl LCA. The effect of
McDowell was to declare that there was not |egislative authority to
provide for that priority. This anmendnent, if it were adopted as it
is now, would authorize you to pass legislation that would bring the
state into conpliance.

SENATOR TAYLOR: That's di sturbing because this docunent has been sold
as the solution and, apparently fromyour statenent it’s not, that it
woul d then take additional actions from the legislature. Wuld the
Adm ni stration support linking specific amendnents to ANILCA with a
constitutional anendnent?
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ATTORNEY GENERAL BOTELHO M. Chairman, we do not believe there is
any necessity of any changes to ANILCA in order to — in the enact nent
of this amendnent. Ohers my disagree but in our view this
amendnent, followed appropriately by statutory changes that would
provide for the priority, is all that’'s required.

SENATOR TAYLOR |I'm concerned about that answer because | have
several nmenos from nenbers of your own |legal staff that indicate that
unl ess changes are nmade to Section 807 of ANILCA, it basically takes
the state out of the nmanagenment of our fish and gane and causes mmj or
problenms as far as federal oversight, review, and who's actually
going to be deciding fish and gane managenent decisions. These are
not comng fromany source that |’'ve requested. These are the nenbers
of your own staff and your own [indisc.].

ATTORNEY GENERAL BOTELHO. M. Chairman, if it would be helpful to
have nenbers of ny own |egal staff appear before you | would be gl ad
to offer them up

SENATOR TAYLOR | was asking the question because...
ATTORNEY GENERAL BOTELHO M. Chairman, | hope | was responsive.
CHAI RVAN TORGERSON: O her questions?

[ A SHORT PORTI ON OF THE RECORDI NG | S | NAUDI BLE DUE TO TELECONFERENCE
EQUI PMENT PROBLEMS. ]

SENATOR LINCOLN: ...SJR 201 - one of the questions that Senator
Tayl or asked is one | wanted to ask, as well as howit — if it cones
into conpliance with ANILCA and how we get there and | think you
answered that but one of the recommendations by the Governor’s
| eadershi p conference on subsistence recomended that the | egislature
adopt a constitutional anmendnent guaranteeing a rural subsistence
priority and a |aw that provides a form of co-nmanagenent. Do you see

this tool as one addressing that — in co-nmanagenent ?

ATTORNEY GENERAL BOTELHO M. Chairman, in ny view a constitutiona
anmendnent is not required to allow for co-managenent. | think that’s
a decision that falls within the power of the |egislature today and |
woul d al so indicate that, again, | wouldn't be averse if the question
is whether including that would in some way strengthen managenent,
but | would tell you that throughout the discussions over the |ast
several years that |1’ve participated in we have worked on the

assunption nunber one, that the legislature had such authority and,
second, as we have drafted statutes before, we have expressly
contenpl ated forns of cooperative nanagenent.

SENATOR LI NCOLN: As a followup M. Chairmn?

CHAI RVAN TORGERSON: Go ri ght ahead.
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SENATOR LI NCOLN: Al though we do have the authority to do that, we
haven’t obviously passed a subsistence resolution yet after all of
these years that it doesn’'t preclude us fromalso witing within 201
the necessity to have co-managenent. You' re not suggesting that it
has to be a separate |law but you just didn't put it in here?

ATTORNEY CGENERAL BOTELHO. M. Chairnman, we have not contenpl ated any
specific provision in the constitutional - this constitutional
anmendnent that woul d specifically address co-nmanagenent. |’ m not sure
that I am being responsive but...

CHAI RVAN TORCGERSON: Basically you're saying that we can do it
statutorily and it’s just a detail — it doesn’'t need to be in the
Constitution.

ATTORNEY CENERAL BOTELHO That’'s ny view.

SENATOR LI NCOLN: And then, M. Chairman, there’s the question that -
the questions that were posed to you by our good Chairman, Senator
Torgerson, was the |imtation of the subsistence to hunting and
fishing and within the resolution you ve added or other renewable
resources. Could you expound on that a little bit?

ATTORNEY GENERAL BOTELHO. M. Chairman, to the extent that the state
truly wishes to address conpliance with Title VIII, while our focus
in the debates has been largely on fish and wildlife, the priority on
federal lands is for fish, wildlife and other renewabl e resources and
probably the nbst common exanple would be the harvesting of berries
for subsistence uses. Wile there have been many contributions
[indisc.] that have been considered either by this body or the other
body, they're focused on fish and wldlife. Qur |anguage seeks to
mrror Title VIII of ANLCA and that is to include the other
renewabl e resources.

SENATOR LI NCOLN: And finally, M. Chairman, the question that | have
is on Section (c) of 201. Under Section (c), wouldn't this allow
urban subsistence users to cone to rural Alaska to conpete for the
al ready scarce wildlife resources in sone areas and won’t that also
lead to a Tier Il situation nore quickly than otherw se would occur?

ATTORNEY GENERAL BOTELHO M. Chairnman, there are circunstances where
that could be the effect, that is to the extent that one authorizes
non-rural residents to participate in subsistence harvesting in rural
Al aska, though not necessarily. You could have features where, again,
using the exanple of the Eklutans, them being able to use — | ook at
their customary and traditional harvesting patterns in their area
but not necessarily work to the dimnution of rural residents.
Probably nost inportant to point out is were this to be enacted, the
second sentence of subsection (c) nakes clear that the priorities are
to be granted only after one has satisfied the subsistence priority
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of rural residents in the state. Sone people have tal ked about rural
plus — that is to have not only rural residents but sonme additiona

ri ght now undefined group of people all on the same additional |eve

to access subsistence resources. This anendnent woul d say you have to
satisfy — before you open it up to anyone else, you have to satisfy
the rural subsistence needs first so we have defined that, to a
certain extent, as rural comma plus, as opposed to rural plus.

CHAI RMAN TORGERSON: Senat or Hal ford?

SENATOR HALFORD: Is there anything in Section (c) that grants any
authority to the state |awraking bodies that doesn’t exist wthout
Section (c)?

ATTORNEY GENERAL BOTELHO. M. Chairman, | do not believe so. | think
the legislature likely has this authority today.

SENATOR HALFORD: Wth regard to the way federal oversight works when
we are in conpliance with ANILCA versus when we’'re not in conpliance
with ANILCA, would you kind of go through an explanation of how that
wor ks?

ATTORNEY GENERAL BOTELHO Just so we are really clear, are we

assumng that the federal - the state governnent has taken over
managenent throughout the state and now we have a situation where
someone comes in and says the state — you're not operating in

accordance with..

SENATOR HALFORD: The access to federal court, wth regard to the
conpl aints about the operation of the system appears to be only on
federal lands and waters when we were out of conpliance, but it is
stated to be including federal |ands and waters and state |ands and
waters when we’'re in conpliance.

ATTORNEY GENERAL BOTELHO M. Chairman, | believe that is a correct
reading of what is in Section 807 but | think I would al so underscore

that | think the oversight that’s being discussed here is very
l[imted in nature in terns — or scope — in terns of what a federa
court would be able to do and that is the requirenent, in ternms of

giving relief to a person who brings a case in federal court in
Al aska requires first of all that it take place only after exhaustion
of administrative renmedi es. Second, that the relief to be provided is
sinply that the state adopt regulations that do conply with Section
804 that is providing for the priority and participation and only for
that period of tine — reading it fromthe statute — for such a period
of time as normally provided by state for the regulations at issue,
which, in our state, is normally a one year cycle.

SENATOR HALFORD: Now that’s reading from the provision of AN LCA but

what has been your experience with regard to the cases that we’ve
actually had in the state since then?
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ATTORNEY GENERAL BOTELHO Well, there are actually relatively few
federal cases that have chall enged the state systemin the area — but
| don’'t know that they necessarily comend thenselves - | think
particularly the federal Kenaitze decision in trying to define rural.

W had a district court, which inproperly concluded that the Kena

was not a rural area. The Ninth Grcuit’s reversed on appeal. W’ ve
had review of specific regulations [indisc.] where the courts
guestioned the factual basis of the determ nation made by the board,

whether it had really evaluated properly the evidence. That | don’'t
find particularly [indisc.] difficult kind of, | think, issue that
[indisc.] whether the state or federal courts would engage in. It’'s a
rati onal basis, reasonable basis, for the admnistrative action of
the [indisc.].

SENATOR HALFORD: Wul d you support the amendnent package that Senator
Stevens was able to pass several years ago that expired with regard
to definitions and nodifications?

ATTORNEY GENERAL BOTELHO M. Chairman, again | - let nme say two
things first of all. Qur view as the Adm nistration is that there are
no necessary changes to ANILCA in order to bring the state managenent
of fish, ganme and other resources throughout the state. At the sane
time, | personally participated in review ng Senator Stevens’ past -
| can’t say here that they were [indisc.] in any respect strengthened
— put sideboards on — a persistence in a way that was beneficial to
the state. The Adm nistration’s view, and | represent that today, is
that those are not necessary and that, in order to nove forward, from
our perspective, all that is required is a constitutional anendnment
and statutory changes.

CHAI RVAN TORGERSON: Ot her questions? Senator Hal ford.

SENATOR HALFORD: Wth regard to your nunmber one point on the question
between |l ocal versus rural - do you think local works within the
intent of the original goal of AN LCA?

ATTORNEY CGENERAL BOTELHO. M. Chairman, to the extent that it is in a
context that it’s local within rural, yes. In fact that is the way it
is to be applied — the way it is applied today. Perhaps an
apocal yptic answer is the so-called Barrow that goes to Angoon to
hunt deer. To ny know edge, no one has established that as a
customary and traditional pattern. That Barrow hunter, therefore,
woul d not be able to do so. It is really |ooking at popul ation and
stock — specifically what are the customary and traditional patterns
— who’s harvested in and that is the essence of local and that is
really the context, when we talk about rural residents of an area. |

guess ny caveat is, and it's one of the issues that — in |ooking at
Senator Ward's proposal has been sonewhat of a concern to ne, is
whether it is intended that the starting point is Tier |1, which then

suddenly puts us into an individual evaluation of who in an area gets

SENATE RES COW TTEE 10 May 18, 2002



the priority. Qur view is that you start with a comunity of people
who have customarily and traditionally harvested the resource in an
area. You look to those patterns. Only when there isn’t sufficient
supply to satisfy those subsistence users wuld you go to the
individual criteria that is reflected in Tier Il and so | think there
is a latent anbiguity about whether you start in that amendnent - if
you sinply say local, whether you intend to go local individual or
| ocal collective.

SENATOR HALFORD: How does that jibe with what you just said about the
Bar r ow- Angoon deer hunter? It sounded |ike the reason that the
Barr ow- Angoon deer hunter wouldn’'t qualify was because that
i ndividual couldn’t or didn't have a customary or traditional use
pattern. | agree that, at sonme point, individual criteria becone
unwor kabl e but it just seens like you just used it in your previous
exanpl e.

ATTORNEY GENERAL BOTELHO Well, | wuse it in a sense that you d be
hard to put to establish that it was a tradition of Barrow hunters
collectively to go to Angoon to hunt deer. That’'s what your — so if
you see the Barrow person as the collective rather than the
i ndividual, the point is you start off, M. Chairman, |ooking at a
group in an area and as you |look at stocking — really, perhaps you
start - rather than |ooking at the people you |ook at the stock or
the population and with respect to that stock or popul ati on what had
been the customary and traditional use patterns. Who has customarily
and traditionally harvested the resource? That is your |ocal. Then

when you talk about the next step, that population or stock is
insufficient in terns of what is the harvestable surplus to satisfy

all those users you go to Tier Il and you re nmking a choice now
i ndividually about who is, say, nobst deserving using those three
criteria — proximty, dependence and availability of alternative

resources — deciding who gets to harvest.

SENATOR HALFORD: So if local were a collective criteria instead of
rural, then you would still go to individual criteria with the
exception of local, which you already used when you go to Tier Il

ATTORNEY GENERAL BOTELHO Yes. The only, again, but one other caveat

here, | think, local still has to be in the context of rural |ocal.
mean — presumably, let nme explain why. | guess | wouldn't say it
woul d have to be that way but there are, | suspect, pitfalls that you

woul d not want to have to engage in if you were going to again have a
| ocal subsistence priority in Anchorage, for exanple, Ship Creek, or
on the Kenai where suddenly Kenai residents are all subsistence users
for purposes of the Kenai River, having to decide who anong themt hen
gets to make a choice — gets to harvest. | think it’s a bureaucratic
nightmare that’s going to put not just neighbor against nei ghbor, but
also truly the kind of pressure on the resource is going to be very
difficult to expect sustainability over tinmne.
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SENATOR HALFORD: Should customary and traditional be at a volunme of
use or should it be at a species of use or a kind of species and
vol une?

ATTORNEY GENERAL BOTELHO. M. Chairman, as | wunderstand it, it is
really, even today, really both. You are |ooking to the species that
have been customarily and traditionally harvested and we also, in
deciding at any given point, what is the harvestable surplus for
subsi stence in making a decision about quantity.

SENATOR HALFORD: But the reason | asked the question is, if you have
a major community that grows at a particularly high intensity area,
and there has been sone customary and traditional use so there is a
priority there, but the growmh of the community totally engulfs
either the commercial fish harvest on the sanme resource or whatever
the other harvest is, | think conpeting — particularly comrercial
fisheries want to see sonme kind of limtation on growmh of the
customary and traditional sector and | just...

ATTORNEY CGENERAL BOTELHO M. Chairman, | think that probably raises
a larger issue, a long termone that | think nbost everyone recogni zes
and again, as we’'ve done it in the context of rural generally, it is
really what is rural. Wat criteria should be used in initially
establishing what rural is and then mechanisnms for recognizing that
t he denographics of the state change. There are going to be areas -
there are areas today — that we would say are in transition in terns
of being rural and non-rural and that will constantly evol ve.

SENATOR HALFORD: Thank you M. Chairman. |'’msorry to...
CHAI RVAN TORGERSON: That’s all right. Good questions. Senator Elton.
4:45 p. m

SENATOR ELTON: Thank you M. Chair. | mean we’ve struggled with the
definition of rural in this context for a long tine. Has anybody yet
begun to define what local is in this context?

ATTORNEY GENERAL BOTELHG M. Chairman, in the context of the
constitutional anendnent, | think the answer is we haven’t. | nmean -
our focus, we have talked about in areas and - |ooking at rural
residents in areas and, in that respect, we use the term | ocal when
it would be focusing on the species by species what is the customary
use again, what will we have with respect to the N lchina caribou
herd, for exanple, which will be different from sone fish stock in
t he area because again, by species, [indisc.] varieties. That remains
the starting point in defining area or local, in ny view, but it’s
not one that gets resolved at the constitutional |evel other than
setting the broad paraneters ultimately as sonething that you expect
the expertise of your boards of fisheries and gane, in consultation,
as the appropriate advisory bodies in the schene that we have
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advanced before and which | think ANILCA contenplates is a form of
regional councils who can provide their own know edge about what
t hose use patterns are and what |ocal really constitutes.

CHAI RVAN TORGERSON: Senat or Tayl or.

SENATOR TAYLOR I'm still a little troubled because | didn't
understand your answer, | guess Bruce, to the question | posed
[indisc.] attorneys and the nenpbs that they had witten on Section
807, which was the sanme section Senator Halford was inquiring of you
about and you answered it by saying you want themto cone in here and
talk. I nean, your own attorney said failure to anmend Section 807 in
adopting any formof conpliance with this federal law — failure to do
that and include that in the constitutional anendment of ANILCA is a
fatal flaw. That’s their words, not mne. | [indisc.].

ATTORNEY GENERAL BOTELHO. M. Chairman, | don’'t have the nenps at
hand. | don’t know what they are. | don't know who they're by. MW
suspicion would be that this — these nenobs nay have been what, 8 or
10 years old, M. Chairman. | don’t know which ones they are. | would
be glad to take a ook at thembut if there are people that are on ny
staff, | would gladly offer themup to this commttee so that Senator
Tayl or woul d have the opportunity to directly examne them | don’t
know what statenments you're referring to.

SENATOR TAYLOR: But your position today is that there’s no changes
necessary to ANILCA? | think you ve said that [indisc.].

ATTORNEY CGENERAL BOTELHO M. Chairman that is correct.

SENATOR TAYLOR: One last thing and get back to what Senator Halford
was tal king about and I don’t know the answer to this question but we
al ways tal k about rural when we tal k about users and people, who may
or may not take various resources. W’ ve not yet talked about the
resources thenselves that nay be within urban areas. If we do anend
this Constitution of ours and nmake all of our state |ands and waters
subject to federal |aw, what would prevent a person who is a rural
person within the federal definition from comng in and taking,
literally, all of the fish in Ship Creek, from taking npbose in
Anchor age?

ATTORNEY GENERAL BOTELHO M. Chairnman, the — again, the amendnent is
to operate in rural Al aska, not urban Alaska. | think that’s the
first and nost inportant distinction. AN LCA does not require that
t he managenent of a subsistence priority be everywhere in the state.
It is to be in rural Al aska, however that’s defined and it’s not
defined by the federal governnent, ultinmately. It’'s to be defined by
the instrunentality that is responsible for the nmanagenent and if you
adopt the instrunentality that is responsible for the managenent and
if you adopt this constitutional anendnent and the people [indisc.]
constitutional amendnment that would enact the laws, it would be the
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State of Alaska determining what those rural boundaries are,
obvi ously subject to challenge but they are today and that is the
extent, | think, of the — of how this works. | can’'t contenplate a
scenario that Senator Taylor has suggested in which sonmehow a rura
cone in to Anchorage to harvest npose in Anchorage has a priority
over others. Anchorage is a non-subsistence area under both federa
and state reginmes and this constitutional anendnent certainly — it
m ght change that back

SENATOR TAYLOR Only the residents of Anchorage, because they are
living in an urban area, are precluded from participating. Woever
those residents are, wherever they came from they are currently
precl uded under that federal |aw. They are not rural, they are urban.
It’s a definition for people. It’s not a definition for resources and
if resources are found in an urban area.... [END OF SIDE A]

TAPE 02-32, SIDE B

SENATOR TAYLOR: ... habitat friendly portion of Anchorage. It’s a big
area, the city is, it takes in clear dowmmn to Grdwod | think. If -
well, if something - if resources, those sheep, for instance, wander

around by the highway down there, it’s certainly a gane popul ation
that would be available for harvest. Is the resource al so defined by
the definition of the user? Is that what you' re telling nme?

ATTORNEY GENERAL BOTELHO M. Chairman, it’'s defined by the rural
area. Yes.

SENATOR TAYLOR The last question |1'd have then is does the
Governor’s anendnent to our Constitution take us out of co-managenent
or does it leave us still in a co-nmanagenent or tri-mnagenent system
i ke we are today?

ATTORNEY CENERAL BOTELHO. M. Chairman, it renpbves us from co-
managenent with the federal governnment in virtually every aspect with
sonme exceptions, which the federal governnent has exclusive contro
over in any event. Marine mammals is an exanple - certain mgratory
waterfow . That won't be changed one way or another, but there wll
be wunitary managenent in the sense that the State of Alaska’s
agencies will be those responsible for managing fish and wildlife for
all beneficial uses, not just subsistence. Again, and |’'m not sure

whet her Senator Taylor is alluding to this, there will of course be
the opportunity for people who believe that they have been aggrieved
under Title VIII by the State, to try and seek judicial redress,

especially in federal courts. They have the right to do that as well
as in state courts and they do exercise that right in both.

SENATOR TAYLOR | just wanted to nmake sure that option of going to
the federal <court by any person dissatisfied wth the state’'s
managenent, after you have anmended the Constitution and placed all of
the state |ands and waters within this federal jurisdiction, you then
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have [indisc.] where today, on state |ands and on state waters, they
go to state court, don’t they?

ATTORNEY GENERAL BOTELHO M. Chairman, those who are aggrieved about
state managenent on state resources, the renedy is to go into the
state courts today. And, wth respect to federal nanagenent on
federal lands, their renedy is to go into federal court today. Wile
this is an express act of Congress, it nakes clear that any person
aggrieved or organi zation aggrieved about whether we have satisfied

the priority and the participation in Title VIII, now can, were we to
enact this anmendnent go in to federal court. Again, both what the
federal courts can do is |limted but | think, nmore inportantly, |I'm
not at all troubled by the idea — | don't think any of us should be

here, that people should be able to seek judicial review, federal or
state, of actions they believe are contrary to law by governnent

agencies. | swre an oath to uphold the federal as well as state
constitutions, here. |I’'m not ashanmed of the federal courts. | my
di sagree with sonme of their decisions. I'Il tell you |I also disagree
with some of the decisions of the Al aska Suprene Court and | know,

Senator Taylor, you share that view. One is not inherently better
than the other. They are sinply avenues for redress for allegations
of governmental overreaching and if there’s any confort here, | would
say for those who are concerned about what federal courts can do,
it’s in many respects nore limted than what state court renedi es can
be.

SENATOR TAYLOR: | just wanted to clarify that one point.
CHAI RVAN TORGERSON: Thank you Senator Tayl or. Senator Lincoln?

SENATOR LI NCOLN: | just wanted each of the testifiers to also answer
the one question of if we do nothing, what, in your estimation, would
occur.

ATTORNEY GENERAL BOTELHO M. Chairman, | believe that the fish and
ganme managers can nuch nore el oquently answer this question but what
is clear, first of all, is that we do have a truly dual nmanagenent
system that is comng into play. It’s stronger [indisc.] passage of
time in ternms of one regine in the state, which has only one
responsibility, and that is to make sure that all subsistence needs
are satisfied on the public lands — federal |ands of the state. And,
a second system which on state |lands has a responsibility to manage
both for subsistence and other uses but to allocate anong benefici al
uses and we have areas of the state where both claim jurisdiction
trying to apply those conpeting nmanagenent responsibilities, which
provide both a conflict for the nanagers but also on the ground
conflict for the users. | think that is one [indisc.] the nost. |I'm
concerned that apart from that [indisc.] any nore from a political-
social viewpoint of the consequence of failure to act, what it’s
doing in dividing states, regional lines, racial lines, and ny sense
is that finally passing an anmendnment, inplenmenting statutes will do a
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lot to heal that division that is clearly energing.

CHAI RVAN TORGERSON: Thank you Bruce for your testinony today.
ATTORNEY GENERAL BOTELHO Thank you, M. Chairman.

CHAI RVAN TORGERSON: Let’s go next to Dick Bishop.

MR. DI CK BI SHOP, Al aska Qutdoor Council: Thank you M. Chairman. My
name’s Dick Bishop. | live near Fairbanks in an urban area. | am
speaki ng on behal f of the Al aska Qutdoor Council and appreciate the
opportunity to address the conmttee and I will try to address your
gueries or the areas that you indicated were of particular inportance
first and then, hopefully, 1’Il stick to that but | my have to
el aborate a little bit longer as well as the attorney general did.

|’d start out by saying that | really appreciate the Governor’s
comment yesterday that | heard over the radio on a newscast that each
and every word is extrenely inportant in a constitutional anendnent.
| think that’'s sonething that’'s essential that all of us who are
consi dering changes, and especially legislators since they have the

deci sion making responsibility, have to keep in mnd so |I my get
back to that later. But, overall, I'd like to point out that from ny
standpoint and the standpoint of the Al aska Qutdoor Council, the

inperative that’'s inplied in questions or statenments one through
three here, we don’'t believe are inperatives. For exanple, it says
the state constitution needs to be changed, etcetera, to allow the
| egislature to assign a preference for subsistence hunting based on
| ocal residence. Well, we would take exception to that. W don’t feel
that the state constitution necessarily needs to be changed in that
way. These questions very significantly relate to what |1’ve heard in
the last several days called the litnus test of neeting conformty
wth the federal law. That’s — in our view, that is not a legitimte
l[itnmus test because, in our view, the federal law is fatally flawed
and to change our constitution, nodify some of the very inportant
provisions in that «constitution, both from the standpoint of
conservation, that is, the wise use of wildlife resources — fish and
wildlife and other resources in this case, and also from the
standpoint of civil rights, Title VIII of ANILCA is fatally flawed
and it is not a good ideal to try to conformto that |aw despite the
difficulties that the conflict between the state and federal |aw
invite. In our view it is better to do it right at least on state
| ands and waters than to sinply work to conformto federal |aw.

And | guess | would like to respond to Senator Lincoln's question in
that regard, what if you don't conformto federal law. Well, what if
you don’'t is that you have approximately [indisc.] state l|lands and
what state waters we still have authority over that are under the
responsibility and authority of the State of Alaska and, from our
st andpoi nt, especially since it includes many of the nost significant
fisheries in the state, that’s very inportant that the state would

SENATE RES COW TTEE 16 May 18, 2002



not be burdened with the requirenents of the federal |aw, which they
would be if the state conforns to the federal |aw and takes that
responsibility, enacts the appropriate statutes, etcetera, then the

state is burdened with the nmandates of the federal |aw. They w Il be
overseen by the federal agencies, which are bound by ANLCA to
report to Congress and the perfornmance of the state will be measured

by the federal courts, ultimately the |last stop. So, we don’t think
that’s a good standard, a good litnmus test. So we think there are
other ways to |look for to get out of this box that we’'re in, which
|’ve characterized as a box built of good intentions and bad
judgment, and that is Title VIII of AN LCA

Wth regard to place of residence, the first statenent, 1'd like to
remnd the conmmittee and the legislature and the public that when
this question canme before the Al aska Suprene Court, they ruled
agai nst using place of residence as a neans of distinguishing who can
receive the priority. They sumred it up in two words, extrenely
crude, and they didn't nmean in terns of norals, they neant in terns
of its ability to address the underlying deed of the law that it was
supposed to address. They have pointed out that the rural priority
was both over-inclusive of those who depend on wld resources for
their livelihood and under-inclusive because it included people in
rural Al aska who didn’'t need it and excluded, by the stroke of a pen,
those in urban Al aska who did need it and they pointed to records to
verify the basis for the decision from the Departnent of Fish and
Ganme that showed there is a significant nunber of urban residents who
indeed relied on the use of fish and gane, in particular to maintain
a subsistence |ifestyle fashion. They went on to say that it would be
much better to base a priority on individual characteristics that
related to — excuse ne — the needs of the people who were seeking
t hese basic necessities and that that would be less invasive of the
common use and equal access provisions of the Constitution so we
don't believe that place of residence is an appropriate way to
di stinguish and separate subsistence uses and we agree wth that
characterization of it that it’s extrenely true.

Wth regard to the second point, rural subsistence limtation — again
| would object to the idea that the preference nust be limted to
subsi stence hunting and fishing [indisc.] of Alaska. First off, you
know we're really talking about two different things. One is a
question of identity and philosophy and that is who is a subsistence
user and who determines that. That is, as we’'ve heard and |I'm sure
you' ve heard over the |ast several days, a question of values and
it’s not a question that you or | or the legislature collectively or
anyone can really determne. If | want to be able to identify as a
subsi stence user and | place those val ues anong ny hi ghest ones and |
believe that they characterize ny life and ny lifestyle for ny
pur poses, that’s ny business. Unfortunately, or fortunately perhaps,
| don’t think it’s the Legislature s business or the Governor’s, for
that matter, or the President’s as far as that goes. But, when it
comes to providing a priority for the uses of public, comonly held,

SENATE RES COW TTEE 17 May 18, 2002



common property resources, then it is the Legislature’s business, in
this case, to decide who should receive the priority anmong those who
wi sh to consider thenselves a subsistence user and who nay wish to
qualify for that priority. So we have tw things. It’'s not
appropriate, | don't think, to tell people they are or are not a
subsi stence user but it is appropriate for the state through the
normal process to decide who anong those people who nay identify
t hensel ves that way should receive the priority, if there is one, for

subsi stence uses and under what basis. So, | don’t think that a rural
limtation is appropriate. There are people, as | nentioned, in urban
Alaska who firmy believe — passionately believe, they are

subsi stence users and as people have discussed now for 25 or 30
years, the spectrumof those who identified thenselves in that way is

extrenely broad. It runs really across the society. So, | don’t think
that’s — and we don’t think and never have, the Alaska Qutdoor
Council, that the rural subsistence preference nmust be limted to
subsi stence hunting and fishing in rural Al aska or, for that matter,
by rural Al askans. The inmportant thing, | think, is with regard to

deciding who has the priority is in order to assure that no one’s
opportunities are conpromsed that the same standards could be
devi sed — standards that are devi sed should be the same for those who
live in urban Al aska and those who live in rural Al aska. The sane
val ues underlie the reason for the priority. The desire to have one -
t he sane standards shoul d apply.

It was interesting the attorney general brought up the subsistence
summer from last sunmer in this regard, with regard to values and
where the priority goes and what the limtations should be because at
that sunmt the participants agreed to adopt as an overall statenent
of the role of subsistence in the |ives of Al askans the findings from
Al aska statutes that were passed in 1992, which as | pointed out
before - | drafted first for Governor Hickel’'s subsistence advisory
council and in those findings we attenpted to identify the shared
val ues and the fact they are not limted to rural, urban, non-Native,
etcetera, and pointed out this, and I'll read a little bit fromit.
“Al though custons, traditions and beliefs vary, these Al askans share
ideals of respect for nature, the inportance of using resources
wi sely, and the value and dignity of a way of life in which they use
Al aska’s fish and ganme for a substantial portion of their sustenance.
This way of life is recognized as subsistence.” And it goes on to say
that these customary and traditional uses originated with Alaska's
Nat i ve peopl e and have been adopted and suppl enented, inmtated and so
on by others and that they are socially, cul turally, and

phi |l osophically and so on inportant anong us all. So I'd just rem nd
you that as an inportant consideration of what kind of limtation
should there be. Should there be a rural limtation? Should it be a

pl ace of residence? Sonething to keep in m nd.
Lastly on that subject, | can’'t ever consider this subject wthout

thinking of Elizabeth Peratrovich who successfully testified on
behal f of civil rights for Alaska Natives in the early *50s, if |
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remenber correctly, and essentially turned the Al aska Territorial
Senate on its ear with her speech after they had derided the idea of
a civil rights law that accorded equal treatnent to Al aska Natives
and criticized the idea very — very poorly actually. At that tinme the
tradition was that people could stand up in the gallery and have
their say, which she did. And she said — you know it’s surprising to
me, and | won’t quote entirely — it’s surprising to nme that | have to
stand here and rem nd you gentlenen of our Bill of R ghts. And what
she was seeking was equal rights for Alaska Natives, not special
rights — not special rights for rural people, not special rights for
Native people but equal rights for all Al askans. She nade a huge step
forward

Wth regard to customary and traditional use, this is a problemtic
term and | disagree that the subsistence preference nmust be limted
to that. However, it has potential w th advantageous use but under
the terns of the federal law with which the state would eventually be

in conformty if HIR 201 — | had to change ny button - it said 41, |
had to stick on a little deal over the top that says HR 201 - is the
urban rural divide. | had to change that this norning but, at any

rate, if the state conforns to the federal law, then there really
needs to be change in the federal definition of customary and
traditional use. The reason is that so far, it’s been a blank check
for the extent and anount both and kind of uses by those who qualify
for the subsistence priority and it has brought sonme rather severe
constraints on nmanagenent. For exanple, in the Bobby (ph) case, the
j udge, Judge Holland, decided and told the state at that tinme it
was in conpliance, you can't substitute abundant fish for scarce
noose. You have to create regulations that acconmodate customary and
traditional use unless you can prove to ne that that use is going to
threaten the viability or the well being of the nbose popul ation. So,
on the one hand you just had a set of evidence that established that
there was customary and traditional use there, on the other hand if
that were to be challenged by the state on the issue of whether it
was a threat to the population, you would have to do it on the basis
of a scientific study by the state that would prove a very high
probability that that was a problemfor conservation or w se use. So,
if there is — if customary and traditional use continues to be used
and especially if it were a case of the state comng into conformty
with the federal law, then it, at the very least, ought to be a
requirenent in AN LCA, an anendnent to AN LCA that would make a
requirenent that it conform to the definition of customary and
traditional use as defined in state law and | would urge the
| egislature at that point to |look carefully at that definition again.

An interesting sidelight on customary and traditional use and the

terms of HIR 201 and of the federal lawis that, if you' Il notice, it
says that a subsistence preference for rural residents would have a
priority over all other consunptive uses of resources. It 1is

painfully silent on how it would conpete with non-consunptive uses.
There is nothing in either in the federal law or in HIR 201 that

SENATE RES COW TTEE 19 May 18, 2002



gi ves even subsistence uses a priority over non-consunptive uses. In
my view, that is sonething that could lead to mschief eventually
where people — and it’s actually happened in proposals before the
Board of Gane, people have proposed that there be no hunting areas
where there is wildlife viewwng so that’'s sonmething to keep in mnd
too. It was kind of a hollow victory in a sense. Fortunately it
hasn’t caused too nuch problem for hunters and subsistence users so
far.

Then to the last point — legislative discretion. It’s — we think it’s
extrenely inportant that, with regard to the nay-shall choice, that
it be made. That does put the responsibility and authority for
deciding what the right treatnment of the subsistence uses is in the
hands of the legislature where it belongs. It’s my understandi ng that
if the word shall is used, then that responsibility and authority is
renoved and it is the courts, be they state or federal depending on
the law, wll decide what the interpretation of that constitutiona
| anguage is. So, that would be a pickle to get into for sure if the
| egi sl ature passed the |aw and said — and agreed to passing shall in
there and | ow and behold they woke up a year |ater and found out they
had essentially handed off the authority to create the appropriate
kind of law to provide for subsistence use and as necessary |limt it
or other related uses. So, as | nentioned at the outset, I'mreally
glad that Governor Knowl es pointed out the inportance of exam ning
the significance and — pointing out the significance of each word of
the Constitution and exam ning that very carefully.

And in that regard, | would add one alnost final comment and that is
that the maker of the use of the words in HIR 201 is very troubl esone
in that the only subsistence traditions anong Al askans that, by
policy, would be recognized by the State of Alaska, are the
subsi stence traditions of Alaska s indigenous people. The question
that comes to mnd is did the authors believe that there were no
other traditions related to subsistence anong other Al askans or did
they believe that those traditions were inconsequential or
insignificant or of no account and just what does it nean and what
does it nmean when you take that |anguage and go to Part B where is
says that customary and traditional use by rural residents wll be
gi ven preference.

CHAI RVAN TORGERSON: | think we need to wap up here.

MR. BI SHOP: Ckay - which customary and traditional use, by whom and
how that will affect those in urban Al aska. | thank you very nuch for
your tinme.

CHAI RVAN TORGERSON: Senat or Tayl or and then Senat or Hal f ord.

SENATOR TAYLOR Yes, very briefly. I’m assumng you' re in opposition

to the Governor’s bill that’s before us?
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MR, BISHOP: That’s a correct assunption M. Senator.

SENATOR TAYLOR Can you tell me, of the state’s 103 to 105 mllion
acres of land, adding to that the state's jurisdiction over all
navi gable waters — every stream river, all waters seaward of us for
three mles, and the |ands conveyed to both Native corporations and
Native villages and the private |ands owned within the state, under
whose jurisdiction are those waters and | ands today?

MR. BISHOP: M. Chairman, Senator Taylor, in general, under the
state’s jurisdiction, there’s a dispute over sone portion of that -

those waters and subnerged lands and | don’t know how nmuch is
i nvol ved. Those so called reserve waters, which under the Katie John
case, the federal court ruled that the state had - the federal
government had the authority to nmanage for subsistence so | don't
know how nuch is involved there. It certainly takes away from the
state’s navigable waters quotients | guess you could call it, but
other than that, all of them are under the responsibility and

authority of the State of Alaska - state, private |lands and waters,
including navigable waters, except those disputed perhaps, and
private | ands and waters.

SENATOR TAYLOR: What woul d happen to state jurisdiction over all of
those |ands, waters, Native village land, the corporate |land, all
state land, all private land, all the waters of the state. \Wat would
happen? Who woul d be in charge of and who woul d have the jurisdiction
over those |ands and waters upon passage of sonething like this that
has been proposed by the Governor.

MR. BISHOP: Assuming that - M. Chairman and Senator Taylor -
assumng that the state then accepted the responsibility and created
the appropriate laws and so on, the state would be responsible for
admnistering the federal law as it related to Title VII1 of AN LCA
They would have the role of — it depends on if you re having a bad
day or not, the hireling, the |lackey, the servant, the — whatever,
you know, hired hand of the governnment. In ternms of, in our view,
which law dictates ultimately how nmanagenent would be conducted
because Title VIII demands | aws of general applicability on behal f of
the State, then the ternms of the federal law would apply to 100
percent of Al aska.

CHAI RMAN TORCGERSON: Senat or Hal f or d.

SENATOR HALFORD: Thank you M. Chairman. |I'm — | nean obviously
there’s agreenent that subsistence - there may be definition
di fferences, but subsistence in the tine of need is the highest and
best wuse but we’'re debating what nethod of allocation is
constitutional and it’s been held by our Suprene Court and by a | ot
of us for a great many years that rural was too blunt. | guess the
guestion that followed and the question that an alternative proposal
brings out is local is a little bit sharper but not in your view
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sharp enough. But | think |I hear you saying that no criteria short of
i ndividual criteria is sharp enough. Is that what you’ re saying?

MR. BISHOP:. M. Chairman, Senator Halford. That's basically what
we're saying. We think if the priority or preference is going to be
provided in a fair fashion to all Al askans, then we take confort, |
guess, in the advice of the Alaska Suprene Court that a priority
based on individual characteristics would be far preferable and |ess
invasive of the commobn use equal access provisions of the U S
Constitution as it stands today.

SENATOR HALFORD: It’'s just hard to view fairness upon — on a relative
scale and then apply admnistrative possibility to that scale. |
start at the sanme place but | conme back to some point where | think
the Suprenme Court would say that there may be sone collective
determ nation that are accurate enough and reasonable enough to be
constitutional. The things that we like — none of us like to think of
our constitutional rights as relative but we really know that they
all are and that the world is full of all kinds of discrimnation and

there’'s constitutionally perm ssi bl e di scrim nation and
constitutionally inpermssible discrimnation. I wsh I could find
the right set of reasonable criteria that didn't have to be
adm nistered individually because | believe that’'s an inpossibility

that would actually be accurate enough to fit kind of the mddle of
that nmold on what’s constitutional and what isn't and that’s pretty
har d.

MR. BISHOP: It’s tough and | enpathize with the legislature in trying
to find that correct treatnent.

SENATOR HALFORD: Well - | nean | think obviously going to local is a
huge step in the right direction but that doesn’t nean that will make
it work. Qoviously it depends on what everything says.

MR, BISHOP. M. Chairnan, Senator Halford, one of the other conments
that was made in the McDowel |l case was a discussion, | can’t renmenber
it accurately offhand, but, about the question of a community
priority versus an individual community, basically what they said was

that the comunity was the sum of the individuals and | have
sonetimes thought that if you re looking at an individual priority,
for exanple, then it’'s not illogical to think that you could sumthe

individual priorities in a place that could be characterized as a
comunity priority. Wwuld it fly constitutionally? I don’t know But
logically or rationally, you know if the individual priority is okay,
then the sum of the individual priorities presumably m ght be okay.
You get into some deep equal protection waters there, | think, that |
don’t have hi gh enough boots on today to get into.

SENATOR HALFORD: Well and you conplicate it with proxy harvest and

the fact that only a very small percentage of the people are actually
the harvesters for the whole comunity and they may be the people
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t hrough anbition, experience or whatever, who would be specifically
excl uded from any individual criteria based on need.

MR. BISHOP:. M. Chairman and Senator Halford, | think that’'s a good
thing to explore because — |I’m just speaking for nyself now, | can't
say that AOC s actually considered this question so don't take it as
ACC s scare tactics or anything but with regard to the question of
bei ng based on need or dependence, | don’t know that that necessarily
equates entirely to whether you're rich or poor. You know if, for
exanple, you choose to rely heavily on resources as a matter of

lifestyle, you may have a significant incone | suppose, but still
that is a part of your — again it goes back to being related to your
values and if that’s the way you want to live, you know, | don't
know.

SENATOR HALFORD: One | ast questi on.
CHAI RMAN TORGERSON: Senat or Hal f ord.

SENATOR HALFORD: What would you think if the federal governnent
passed an anendnent to ANILCA that just said that for purposes of
this act, all Al aska residents are considered to be rural?

MR BI SHOP: Well, M. Chairman, Senator Halford, | think with respect
to the question of subsistence, they'd be a lot closer than they are
Now.

SENATOR HALFORD: Because we're — nost of what we talk about is the
difference between Tier | and Tier II.

CHAI RVAN TORGERSON: Ot her questions? [No response.] Okay, next we’ll
go to Julie Kitka and maybe Loretta. Do you want to both cone up or
one at a tine or however you want to do it?

| NAUDI BLE COMVENT

CHAI RVAN TORGERSON: Oh, okay, that’'d be fine. Loretta cone — please —
and if you would just introduce yourselves for the record. That’s for
t he canera so...

M5. LORETTA BULLARD, President of Kawerak, Inc.: Good afternoon. My
name is Loretta Bullard and | am president of Kawerak, which is the
regional non-profit for the Bering Straits region of Al aska and thank
you for this opportunity to testify. Wre a regional non-profit
consortium authorized by the 20 tribally - federally recognized
tribal governments in the Bering Straits region and |I’m here on
behal f of our corporation today and just to express our support for a
state constitutional anendnent allowing the state to conme into
conpliance with AN LCA W support the constitutional anendnment
proposed by Governor Knowes provided that it’s coupled wth
i npl enenting legislation that brings the state into conpliance. W
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urge the Alaska Legislature to allow Alaskans to vote on a
constitutional anendnent so that we can bring closure to this
divisive issue. In the Bering Straits region of Al aska we have about
9,000 individuals residing in the region and I would guestimate that
probably about 7,000 of those are Al aska Native. None is about 4,000,
of which is about 50-50 and then in our villages it’'s predom nantly
Al aska Native. The folks in our villages are very, very dependent on
the resources of the area - fish, marine mammuals, birds and we
believe that the harvesting and using of fish and gane in our area
and in other areas of the state is such a core part of our culture
that unless that ability to harvest those resources is protected,
that we feel that over time that our cultures and the resources on
whi ch we depend on if [indisc.] allowed access to those resources
our ability to follow our way of life in rural Alaska will dimnish

Regardl ess of how anti-subsistence activists and |egislators may
address their argunments in terns of equal protection, state rights or
comon use, in essence they are arguing, and this is from our point
of view, that the urban majority has a paranount right to destroy
mnority [indisc.] culture by sheer weight of nunbers. | used to live
in the Anchorage area and like many of you |I’m sure, have gone down
to the Kenai River and fished there at Russian River and |’ve seen
the conbat fishing and that’s kind of how we envision the onsl aught
of urban people when they conme to the rural areas and it’'s not that
bad in our area but | think there’'s fear of that, that we can't
conpete with the sheer nunbers of urban residents which would like to
have the ability to hunt and fish in our particular areas. Wile
Al aska state | aw provides that subsistence is the highest use of fish
and gane because the state court decisions have decided that
everybody is a subsistence user, in reality there is no protection
for subsistence users under state |aw and because the Bering Straits
region is nostly state land, there’'s very little federal land in our
area, chances are we're going to continue to remain under state

managenent. |’ve heard fol ks tal k about they want to do an i ndivi dual
criteria. They want to see the systens set in place based on
individual criteria. Using nyself as an exanple, 1’'ve lived in
Anchorage but the tinme |I lived in Anchorage | would never dream to
present nyself as being eligible for a subsistence priority. | live
in rural Alaska and using individual criteria, assumng that part of
that mght be incone, | certainly wouldn't be eligible for

participation as a subsistence user, you know, and just thinking
about the fact that, for exanple, when we go to fish canmp it’s
nyself, ny famly, extended famly, | nmean sonme people would be
eligible, others wouldn't. | nmean | don’t know how you're going to
split those hairs in terns of who gets to participate in subsistence
fishing and who does not and so |I just think that individual criteria
wi |l not work.

Al t hough Kawerak supports a state constitutional anendnent and a

return to unified fish and gane nmanagenent consistent with AN LCA
this is by no neans the way - no neans universal wthin the
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comunity. | think that was AVCP and Tanana Chiefs Conference that
testified at the House Resources that they are in support of
remai ni ng under f eder al managenent . The federal subsi stence
managenent system is increasingly appealing, especially in regions
where nost of the land is federal. The Al aska boards, of fish and
game for exanple, are politically appointed and their conposition
depends on the political whim of the governor and the |egislature

which | think was illustrated here recently. There’'s a real risk in
Al aska that individuals in institutions that oppose our way of life
will be vested with the authority to destroy the very foundations of

our culture. W need continued federal oversight to protect our
ability to live off of the land. To have federal [indisc.], you have
to have federal oversight.

Title VIII of ANLCA is the nodern equivalent of a treaty. It
replaces the aboriginal hunting and fishing rights that were
extinguished in ANCSA and is just as much a part of the overall
settlenent as Native lands claimas was the transfer title to Native
corporation lands. Nothing, not the U S. Constitution, nor the 1867
purchase of Al aska from Russia, nor the Statehood Act, not ANCSA, not
ANI LCA, gives the majority urban culture in Al aska the noral or |ega
right to destroy the very foundation of our cultures.

In response to the four points that have been identified in the nmeno
for this hearing, in terns of place of residence, we believe that a
| ocal residence subsistence priority mght be devel oped that works as
well or better than ANILCA rural preference. W think that doing so
woul d be very conplex and that the |anguage creating that would have
to be developed along wth the constitutional anmendnent because you
can’t analyze that unless you have sonmething to actually |ook at.
ANILCA in effect is already a |ocal preference since the preference
is for non-wasteful wuses and subsistence uses are defined as
customary and traditional uses by rural residents. The customary and
traditional part of the definition inplicitly contains a |ocal
l[imtation since, for exanple, there’s no customary and traditiona
use of fish and gane stocks that are too renote for conmunity access.
It does need to be, I think, the use areas. Local use areas need to
be defined pretty broadly. People do travel a |ong ways, for exanple,
when they’ re going caribou hunting. 150, 200 mles is not unusual. W
suspect it would be possible to draw up the rural residence
[imtation and devel op a system based on CNT findings and/or a | ocal
priority that would work just like ANILCA in rural areas but would
have the advantage of not precluding sone subsistence priorities for
urban folks in their own areas but again you need to see supporting
|l egislation and we think it would be very difficult to develop this
in a special session actually. The nore a proposal deviates fromthe
exi sting ANI LCA | anguage, the nore conplicated the discussion and the
nore inmportant it is to see the entire package.

In terns of the legislative discretion on the may versus shall,
initially our region — it didn't really matter to us whether it was
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may versus shall but yesterday, | think it was Charlie Cole, was
testifying in the House Resources Committee [indisc.] suggested that
if the language was nmay, that the parties could continue to seek
amendnments to AN LCA which would just kind of drive this whole
process on for the next 20 or 30 years with people going back to
Congress trying to anend ANl LCA. For that reason, we support the word
shall in the constitutional anmendment. W don’t want to see this
argunent carried on for the next 30, 40, 50 years. It’s tine to put
it to rest.

| encourage the state legislature to put a constitutional anendnent
on the ballot that will provide a rural priority for subsistence.
Every year rural Alaska' s engaged the — six times — rural Al aska' s
engaged the state legislature in trying to get this issue addressed.
W’ ve been blocked for the last 12 years by a small group of
| egi slators who are opposed to a rural priority. We need to address
this issue and nove on. The longer rural Alaska stays wth the
federal system the better that systemis working and the situation,
if it’s allowed to continue, wll evolve to the point where a
majority of rural Alaskans will oppose a return to state managenent.
The state is already losing many of its experienced fish and gane
personnel to the federal system who collect their state retirenent
and go to work for the feds. Right now the state has nmanagenent
authority over 104 mllion acres of state land and 44 mllion acres
of Native lands. The feds own and nmanage the rest. Unless the state
| egislature acts to gain nanagenment by anmending the Constitution
[indisc.]. Thank you for the opportunity to testify.

CHAI RVAN TORGERSON: W' Il pick that up in a mnute. My staff just
left so we’ll get that handed out. Questions? Senator Tayl or.

SENATOR TAYLOR: Thank you for your testinony. | appreciate it. |I'm
trying to understand the fear — the Russian River exanple that you
used. | nmean |’ve been there and | can assure you |I'm frightened of
it too. They haven't got a road to Wangell yet so | [indisc.] heard
about them reaching there but... Under state managenent do you have
any exanple of people within your region being denied access to
subsi stence resources by the state?

M5. BULLARD: Yes, | do actually. | would say just recently the state
finally changed its gane [indisc.] regulations in our area from once
every four — it was once every four years for both subsistence and
sports hunting and part of this, it’s probably been for the 10 years
prior to that we were trying to get themto anend....[END OF TAPE]

TAPE 02-33, SIDE A

M5. BULLARD: ...years ago but part of that used to be on an annua
basis and, for exanple, ny uncle that used to go out every year to
get a spring bear was unable to do that when it was once every four
years. Then he went out once every four years to get a bear. Now we
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have this huge bear population in our area, which Fish and Gane
finally nade the change to all ow people to take annual takes of bears
but we had to argue that point for ten years before the state Board
of Gane process.

SENATOR TAYLOR: But you' ve had it now for four years?

M5. BULLARD:. For four years, and now people are hardly hunting bears
anynor e.

SENATOR TAYLOR: Yea, | understand that. Thank you.
CHAI RVAN TORGERSON: Any questions? Senator Lincoln.

SENATOR LI NCOLN: Just a quick comrent. | appreciate the folks in the
room staying around the three extra days waiting to be heard and |
know you have a plane to catch and | would have said that to Dick too
but I know he is here nobst of the tinme, but I do want to express ny
appreciation for you and others who have stayed around to testify.

CHAI RMVAN TORGERSON: Are you going on the 7 o' clock? Is that ...? If
there are no nore questions you can certainly leave or wait for Julie
or whatever you |ike.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: She’ s getting hone.

SENATOR LI NCOLN: W will eventually too.

SENATOR TAYLOR It all depends on you.

5:45 p. m

M5. JULIE KITKA, President, Alaska Federation of Natives (AFN: M.
Chairman, | would like to ask Carol Daniels to acconpany me up here.
well, first of all, M. Chairman and nenbers of the conmttee, | want
to extend our appreciation for you holding this hearing. |I know that

you have nmany issues that you're dealing with and many crises and it
is an intensely difficult period of tinme to kind of focus on

anything, let alone this issue on that and | do appreciate the
heari ng.
First of all, | want to note that we have a nunber of distinguished

Native |eaders in the audience who, if tine were allowed on that,
would have been nore than wlling to provide very inportant
information to the commttee of what’'s happening on the ground in our
villages and why they do or do not support a return to state
managenent — and a reference — the president and distingui shed forner
| egislator Martin Ivan, and the president of AVCP who is in the
audience. And, like | said, there’'s other folks that are here that
have very inportant perspectives so if at some point there’'s an
opportunity for opening up the hearing or getting additional
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w tnesses and stuff, there’'s people that have traveled in that would
be very hel pful.

So, | want to just alert the commttee that we have, at our own
expense in our own effort to be hel pful to you and your deliberations
on that, assenbled a team of resource people that are both experts in
both federal Indian Jlaw, that are experts in co-nmanagenent
arrangenments that have a nunber of different expertises, that can
contribute should there be an opportunity to nove forward and try to
pull all of the pieces together for resolution on that that we have,
like I said, put together a good teamto try to be helpful. | also
just want to state, for the record, nmany people think that we just
are advocating for our own needs and our own people on that but our
viewis the welfare of the resource is very inportant and that is one
of the reasons why we stay at the table, not only to try to help the
state regain sone senblance of harnmony and bridge this divide that
keeps growing, but we do care about the resource under split dua
managenment and whether or not, in the long term that is going to be
hel pful or harnful to the resource, as well as our people who depend
on it.

| also wanted to highlight a few things that are new. There's an
awful ot that we can provide to the comrittee that we would think
woul d be hel pful for your deliberations and many of you have seen
that over the years but | did want to put in the record a 13 page
anal ysis that we put together of what our advisors believe the state
needs to do to reassune managenent and we offer it in the spirit of
being hel pful. W urge your conmttee counsel to take a look at it
and if you agree or disagree on that, but that’s our definitive
assessment of what it takes for the state to regain and I'd like to
have that introduced in the record. [See Appendix |.]

The second thing I would like to introduce on the record is a
vi deot aped copy, and we don’t have a witten copy, of a recent U S
Senate Indian Affairs congressional hearing on subsistence that was
chaired by Senator Inouye and other senators attending — Senator
Frank Murkowski and Senator Ben N ghthorse-Canpbell from Col orado -
and | ask that that be put into the record, primarily for a couple of
things, is, we asked for that hearing primarily to inform the
commttee of what was happening on the ground in our comunities with
the fish shortages and to be able to lay out for the congressiona

cormittee the seriousness of this continuing conflict, t he
seriousness of how everything that is going on inpacts real people in
their real lives and I'd like to introduce that into the record. At

sonme point, you know, that m ght be sonething that you m ght want to
reference back, if you want a refresh why we’'re all doing this and
why we’'re working real hard to try to resolve it is there really are
peopl e that are depending upon this and they are being harnmed by the
current inpasses going on. The second reason why we asked for this
congressional hearing is the Native people, as nmany of you know, have
not sat on the sidelines during all these years. W have constantly

SENATE RES COW TTEE 28 May 18, 2002



tried to look at solutions and bring forward ideas and so we wanted
to inform the congressional comittee what our best thinking of
Native solutions and there was a range of solutions on that but if,
in your reference, if this doesn't get resolved in this special
session, if you want to take a | ook at sone of our best thinking, we
want to introduce it in the record just for your information and
revi ew.

[A COPY OF THE VIDEOTAPE OF THE U.S. SENATE | NDI AN AFFAI RS HEARI NG
THAT MS. KITKA REFERRED TO IS LOCATED IN THE SENATE RESOURCES
COW TTEE FI LE I N THE LEG SLATI VE LI BRARY. ]

W al so wanted at the time to have the best thinking of the state and
the federal governnment on what the status quo is and that, again, is
in the hearing record — a snapshot fromthe state’s perspective and a
snapshot fromthe federal so just take a |look at that and you' Il get
a good hands-on view of what’s going on and | urge — if you do have
the tine to take a look at that, both the video or the unofficial
witten copy.

The third docunent |'d like to put on the record, and would ask
perm ssion to do that, would be a couple of docunents [Appendix I1]
from churches that is recent new things - both the Catholic

perspective on subsistence, the current pastoral letter that the
Cat holic church and bishops put out in the state on that and | think
that that is a new devel opnent, the churches stepping forward sayi ng
there is a spiritual aspect to what is going on. There's a religious
freedom aspect to it. There’'s a noral issue at stake and both the
Catholic pastoral letter as well as the Episcopalian statenment from
the Bishop of Alaska on that | think will give you a very clear
picture in very recent ternms of their deliberations and their
meetings and what they feel [indisc.] and, again, we feel very
strongly that there is a very serious religious aspect in this
conflict that is very much in danger of being tranpled upon as people
| ook at quick and easy solutions on that and we urge you in your
deliberations to reflect on that aspect.

The fourth docunent |I'd like to ask to be included into the record is

a recent Al aska Advisory Commttee to the US Gvil Rights
Commi ssion report, which was released just several weeks ago. It’s a
53-page docunment specifically on Al aska. My of you recall the
horrid paintball incident in the state and the lack of a really

timely response by any governnental or other entity to provide a
forum for people to express their pain in what has been going on. In
response to that, we asked the U S. Cvil R ghts Conmssion to cone
up. They’ve held several hearings on that. They have rel eased their

prelimnary report. It’'s 53 pages and there is a segnent on the
subsi stence hunting and fishing rights and | bring that to your
attention, especially in light of previous testinony referencing

civil rights and what that is and | also urge you to consider at your
very earliest opportunity a very serious inquiry, by this
| egislature, in the things that are docunented in the reports both
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dealing with hom cides and unresol ved nurders and discrimnation and
a whole range of things on that. W are going to be asking the U'S
Attorney General and the Justice Departnent to take a |look at it but
| strongly feel that this is also a legislative and adm nistrative
responsibility. | particularly bring this to your attention with the
segnent on subsistence hunting and fishing but | do think that
there’s a whole lot of really critical, inportant issues that | feel
that you would not be fulfilling the best responsibility to all of us
citizens on that if that was not given sone serious attention.

[ The Al aska Advisory Committee to the U S. Commission on Civil Rights
report can be accessed on t he i nternet at
WWw. usccr . gov/ pubs/ aksac02/main.htm or in the Senate Resources
Commttee file in the Legislative Library.]

The next iteml’'d like to ask to be included in the record, and this
is in specific response - we've participated in the hearing in the
House Resources Committee the other day chaired by Representative
Beverly Masek and one of the first wtnesses was one of your
col | eagues, Senator Jerry Ward, introducing his draft |egislation on
a |ocal preference and we have put together a nore refined analysis
t han what we were able to give at that tine, both a one-page anal ysis
on bullets and a |onger six-page analysis on issues pertaining to
that [Appendix I111]. I would like to ask that be entered into the
record and | have counsel here that can go over point-by-point of
those aspects on that should that be something that you re of
i nterest.

Like | said, in regard to the Governor’s legislation, AFN is in
support of the Governor’s constitutional anmendnent. W think it can
be strengthened. W have draft anmendnents, which we would like to be
considered in regard to that amendnent. We have | anguage, what that
constitutional anmendnent would look |like with those anmendnents and
the primary reason why we’'re supportive of that is we do believe that
it’s inportant for this rural-urban divide to be addressed and taken
seriously. W'’'re concerned about inaction but even nore we're
concerned about the wong actions being taken by the |egislature and
one of our biggest fears is the legislature mght get carried away
with sonme idea and go and pass sonmething and nmy worst nightnmare is
the Native comunity would be urged to vote against a constitutiona
anendnent or an action because, in our people’s judgnent, it does
nore harm than good. So it's better to leave it at the status quo
than try to put sonething forward and stanpede it. And the people
that are nost affected by it are the ones that feel that they're
bei ng damaged even nore and so | urge extrene caution and [indisc. -
paper shuffling] doesn’'t have a core anmount of support from the

Native community on that. | think it’s better to leave it at the
status quo and spend nore time working toward solutions rather than
build that route and so | just want to — I’m not putting that on the

table as a threat. It’'s a great fear that | have.
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My people are very concerned with how politicized this has been over
the years. |’ve had people tell nme that they feel like they re being
kicked around and they just hate it. They just hate all of this
attention over such a small anmobunt of resources. Sonetines it seens
i ke how people are being treated it really is making a nockery of
our people’s way of |ife and our people believe in our values and
sonehow that’s gotta stop and there’s got to be a resolution that’s
fair, it's gotta be a resolution that the Native people can support
and live with and this continuing polarization has got to stop. The
| egislature’s got to step up to the responsibility and not do things
that just drive people apart and so | just want to conclude with that
and would ask that that be put into the record and would |ike an
opportunity, if you wish to have sone specific response on the | ocal
bill, to ask Carol to address sone of those specifics. W have seven
mai n points that we wanted to address on that. If not, you can just
take a look at the witten statenents and, at a |later point after you
have a chance to digest sone of this you want to call us back or if
you want to do whatever, we’'ll be here and our people are prepared to
answer questions, are prepared to draft additional analyses if people
have questions, respond to witten questions, you nane it.

CHAI RVAN TORGERSON: Carol, how long would it take you to go through
your seven points?

M5. CAROL DAN ELS, AFN Counsel: Well, it’s a one-page docunment. |
could go through it pretty quickly but it’s directed...

CHAI RVAN TORGERSON: Why don’t - just focus on the local aspect. Is
t hat what you’ re tal ki ng about ?

M5. DANI ELS: R ght.

CHAI RVAN TORGERSON: Ckay.

SENATOR TAYLOR: Maybe before you do that...

CHAI RVAN TORGERSON: Senat or Tayl or.

SENATOR TAYLOR |1'd nove that each of the docunents, including the
video that Ms. Kitka has requested, be made part of this record and
|’d al so do the sanme as concerns letters. W’ ve received several from

di fferent organi zati ons and other people that they also be included
and be nade a part of the record.

CHAI RMVAN TORCGERSON: Wthout objection. | was going to say that
earlier but | got off track [indisc.] and | didn't want to interrupt
you so — we do want those documents and certainly to read and |

appreci ate your offer to hang around until we can digest this. It’s a
| ot of information.

M5. KITKA: Yes. Like | said, we're willing to spend as nuch tine.
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W' re very patient and we wll respond to any witten questions as
wel | .

CHAI RVAN TORGERSON: Great. Thank you. Senator Hal ford.

SENATOR HALFORD: W' re not going to have time for questions?

CHAI RVAN TORGERSON: No, | think we will. | just wanted Carol to go
through that if it wasn't going to be real lengthy and then | think
that may couch a few nore questions, is what |I’m thinking. Go ahead

and introduce yourself for the record.

M5. DANI ELS: Thank you M. Chairman. My nane is Carol Daniel and |
work with the Alaska Federation of Natives. | am an attorney.
Basically the seven points that we put together were directed
primarily at Senator Ward s proposal but they are sonme of the points
that we nmake in that paper that would be applicable to any formation
of a local priority. First I would like to point out that a |oca
priority would require both a constitutional amendnent and anendnents
to ANILCA as it’s worded in the Ward proposal. The preference in that
proposal is not nmandatory. W think it needs to be mandatory and |
think you ve heard testinmony from Ms. Bullard to that effect. It is
the position of AFN that it should be a mandatory priority.

Al though a |local subsistence priority — the priority that s
contained in Senator Ward’'s proposal, is being described as a |oca

subsi stence priority, it — the preference that it authorizes would
not be in place at all tines, only in tinms of shortages. In other
words, until there’s a shortage there would be no neans for the
boards of fish and gane to acconmobdate customary and traditional

harvest practices of people who live in those |ocal areas and that,

in ternms of special seasons or bag limts so we see that as a probl em
in that proposal.

The proposal also is — uses the term‘in the vicinity.” That termis
very vague. It will obviously entail drawi ng boundaries. It is a term
that hasn’t been used before in either federal or state |law and
wi t hout foreseeing the inplenmenting statute, it is difficult to tel

whet her those boundaries would conply with |ocal areas customary and
traditional harvest practices. W think that |ocal area or |ocal
residency would be very difficult to define in any |ocal residency.
W' ve seen how difficult it has been to define rural and that is a
nore well understood term than local and there’ ve been many
permeations or suggestions on the |ocal everything froma |ocal gane
managenent unit to a regional ANCSA |lands to what the Governor’s
proposal proposes, which is customary and traditional use areas
within rural areas so we think it will be very difficult to define
and one of our suggested anmendnents attenpts to address that issue.

The reference — I've lost ny — | apologize for a nmonent. If the
subsi stence area provision of the state law is retained, a | ocal
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priority is not likely to benefit residents of tribal communities who
have been surrounded by an urban population since nobst of their
customary and traditional harvest practices occur in the areas where
they live. The — I’'ve already nentioned the fact that the priority
woul d operate only in times of shortages. Proximty to the resource
or place of residence — that has been put forward various tines as a
proposed |ocal priority and, in terns of whether that would conply
with the McDowel | decision in requiring — in that case the court held
that the urban-rural classification was extrenely crude, as has been
poi nted out by other witnesses, so we feel the term ‘proximty to
resource’ is also not specific enough to give the legislature the
direction that it would need to enact the enabling | aws that woul d be
consistent wth that.

In ternms of the Ward proposal, it uses — references the term ‘rura
area’ in the |last sentence and inplies that there would continue -
which inplies there would continue to be the non-subsistence or non-
rural areas within the states where subsistence uses would not be
allowed. As |’ve pointed out, this would not benefit those surrounded
tribal villages who harvest in that area. It also uses the term ‘one
who has customarily and traditionally used fish® which tends to
define wuser instead of wunder the federal law, which refers to
subsi stence uses as opposed to users and is fundanentally different
froma resident of a rural area.

Finally, the proposal as introduced by Senator Ward does not provide
aut hori zation for distinguishing anong rural residents when there are
insufficient resources to provide the priority to all residents of a
subsi stence harvest area. | think the problens with comng up with a
| ocal priority are outlined in the longer paper and it would take
| onger to go through that point by point so..

CHAIl RMAN TORGERSON: That’'s fine but that was a good overview and |
appreciate getting that and we’'ll read through that. | just have two
guestions before | open this up. | understand that you do not support
the resolution as witten now, the Governor’s resol ution.

M5. KITKA: AFN does support the resolution and we would like to see
sone anmendnents added to it to strengthen and clarify it and I..

CHAI RVAN TORGERSON: But w thout the anendnents, and |I'm trying to
separate the two, w thout your anendnents do you support this the way
it’s witten currently?

M5. KITKA: W think that the - if — we would like to have you
consi der the anendnents that we have and if you choose not to do the
anmendnents, we would |like you to nove it out of commttee and give us
anot her opportunity as we go forward to keep working on those
anendnents. W think the anmendnents are very straightforward and
they’re nothing new or surprising or that we have asked for in the
past at all so they are just core concerns..
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CHAI RVAN TORGERSON: We’'re not going to take up anendnents today but
make sure you include those at |east in ny packet — well to everybody
so we can all — or we’ll nmake the copies and give it to everybody.

M5. KITKA: And the key thing on the local, just to sumup for Carol’s
thing, is we feel very strongly that we’re not tal king about witing
on a blank piece of paper, you know, since AN LCA s been passed,
there is a lot of history and a lot of litigation and the conflict
over things, a lot of things settled and now, you know, opening up

goi ng down new paths or opening up a whole lot of things that have
al ready been settled and litigated and you should not nake the
m st ake of thinking we just have a blank piece of paper and all of a
sudden desi gned sonething else. There’s a lot of history and a | ot of
work, a lot of the terns that have been defined in different courts.
A lot of our people have used the judicial system which is their
right, and have spent resources, tine, years of tinme pursuing their
rights and just to, you know, just flip over their court decisions or
say it’s not inportant anynore and that does not do a justice to the

peopl e that have been, like | said, trying to be good citizens and
exercising their rights when they feel that the governnent has
overstepped the [indisc.]. | just wanted to just rem nd you because
often we get tenpted |ike — here we have anot her special session, we
have a new opportunity that - it’s not a blank sheet, it really
isn't.

CHAI RVAN TORGERSON: And ny | ast question for either you or Carol,
think | picked up that you believe if we pass the anendnent, the
Governor’s anendnent, that we need a change to AN LCA because of -
okay, go ahead, or either one of you.

M5. KITKA: No, we were tal king about Senator Ward s bill.
CHAI RVAN TORGERSON: Ch, all right. I was on the wong track.

M5. KITKA: In fact that is one of the reasons that we are nore
attracted to the Governor’s proposal because we believe that that can
help the state regain nmanagenent w thout AN LCA anendments. Qur
people are very much in opposition to ANILCA anendnents and | also
wanted to bring to the conmttee’s attention sonething that we have
said for years is our fear if AN LCA gets opened up, we're not the
only people that would be affected. OQther Al askans would be affected
as well. We have said for years that the environnmental community, the
environnmental |obby in this country, has always had a strong interest
in what happens in regard to ANILCA. You don't have to |ook any
further than the Bush Administration’s recent policy on the Tongass
to know that the environnental conmunity will see opening up AN LCA
as another opportunity to overturn the Admnistration’s policy on
that. You have seen recent exanples of them galvanizing and
exercising their strength in the ANWR debate and you cannot expect
that if you open up ANWR that you are only dealing with the Native
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community and that’'s it. You are going to have all kinds of
interests. Every tinme that we deal with issues like this back there,
we get hit with other conpeting ones that want to extract a pound of
flesh out of us in order for us to try to protect our interests and |
think that the state should be very weary of just opening up - and
just saw that in the paper the other day on the Tongass one and it
rem nded ne so...

CHAI RVAN TORCGERSON:  Yea, thank you. Senator Halford and Senator
Tayl or and Senator W I ken.

SENATOR HALFORD: Thank you. A couple of things, one is the question
of only in time of shortage. If there is essentially no shortage
there’s a long nobose season in the fall and there’s a |ong nobose
season in the winter when everything is frozen so you can keep neat,
why is there a need for a preference? If there's adequate resource
for long seasons and reasonable opportunity for harvest, why does
there need to be a preference in that time versus only in time of
short age.

M5. DANIELS: M. Chairman, Senator Halford, | guess | would point to
t he Bobby case, the litigation over the Bobby case, Linme Village, as
an exanple of why the priority is inportant to be in place at all
times, even if there are an abundance of the resource and the reason
for that is that Congress, in passing Title VIII of ANLCA was
intent on protecting a way of life — a subsistence way of life for
rural and Native people and part of that way of life is the customary
and traditional harvest practices of the people who live in rura
Al aska and, in the Bobby case for exanple, there is no |local store or
at the time there was no |local store, the state regulatory system had
i nposed individual bag limts and restricted seasons where you had a
group of people, a small group of people in the comunity who
actually did the hunting for the community and they hunted when they
were hungry or when they needed the neat. So, and the court found
that in setting those regulations, that the Board of Gane did not
take into consideration the actual practices of the people who live
there so | think — 1 nean there are other exanples.

SENATOR HALFORD: Let ne just — so it is your opinion that the franers
of Title VIIl intended exactly what the Bobby case said, which was
that the priority occurs whenever there is any season at all, any bag
l[imt, any limtation on normal nethods and nmeans that basically
there always had to be a priority if there were any limtation at al
on any taking at any tinme of the year in any way? And that’'s what the
case says as | read it.

M5. DANI ELS: The case criticizes the [indisc.-coughing] — the record
did not support the regulations that were put in place for the
village of — for Linme Village and I think that the court was correct
in that the board should have been taking into consideration the
residents of that conmunity’s customary and traditional harvest
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practices when they set the regulations. |I’m not suggesting, and |
don’t think anyone woul d suggest, that the law requires there to be
no regulation of subsistence. It depends on what the custons and
traditions of the people of the conmunity are. Not every village in
Al aska warrants a year-long season and no bag limts but...

SENATOR HALFORD: In the case of Linme Village the result is a year-
| ong season and no bag limts, is it not?

M5. KITKA: M. Chairman? If you'd like, we have Linme Village' s
counsel here in the audience and | would like to invite himup to
give just a very short background on that. This is a very inportant
issue. M. Calswell (ph)?

CHAI RMAN TORGERSON: Good afternoon. Introduce yourself for the
record.

MR BILL CALSWELL, Line Village counsel: Good afternoon. |I'm Bill
Calswell. I'"’ma | awer from Fairbanks and it’s been a long tinme since
| litigated the Lime Village case but | think you re right, M.

Chairman, if | may, | think Senator Halford s right about the reading
the case and | think we think that’s what Congress intended in AN LCA
by mandating that the subsistence - customary and traditional
subsi stence uses - shall have priority over all other uses.

SENATOR HALFORD: It is an all time, continuous priority whenever
there is any restriction at all in any use.

MR. CALSWELL: Whenever there is any restriction of customary and
traditional uses, then you can’t continue to allow other...

SENATOR HALFORD: ...any other use.

MR. CALSVELL: ...other conpetitive uses to the sanme level if you have
to inpose those restrictions and, in the Line Village case, you know,
the result wasn't year-round seasons with no bag limts. The ultinmate
result was, excuse ne, and this is in the federal regulatory schene
now for the part of the hunting grounds that are out there on federal
land, there’s a community bag limt for the village for both nopose
and caribou so even though the seasons are year round, there is a
[imt on the harvest which is based on the best estimate of the
custonmary and traditional harvest l|levels for that conmunity so each
i ndi vidual hunter is not limted by an individual bag |imt but
there’s a comunity harvest reporting system that, in effect, caps
the harvest [at] that customary and traditional |evel.

SENATOR HALFORD: 1'm glad you added ‘in effect.” | haven't got any
ot her questi ons.

CHAI RVAN TORGERSON: Senat or Tayl or ?

SENATOR TAYLOR | have nade this suggestion before and it was well
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received at the tine but it didn't fit politically with sone agendas.
| want to make the sane suggestion. By the way Julie, | was in
Washington, D.C. and | already had the opportunity to watch a good
part of the Inouye hearing and |I’m glad you brought that tape. Thank
you because | think it does get sonme interesting points we haven't
really talked about nmuch before and we need to. M suggestion has
been a system where we get rid of the term advisory on our gane
boards and our fish boards and we turn them into regional fish and
gane boards and give conplete autonomy and control to the people
within those regions to set bag limts, seasons, etcetera, and to
make certain that they protect the subsistence users who actually use
it for sustenance and not to just sell sone eggs to the Japanese fish

buyers. [Indisc. - paper shuffling.] If we want autonony and
control, and when | say ‘we’ |’mtal king about the rural people that
| represent, we get very frustrated with state fish boards and | was
scared to death at the current state ganme board [indisc.]. | didn't
think another wolf would ever be killed around MGath if those
people sat there. | would only retain the ganme board and the fish

board as appellate boards for biological purposes only to make sure
that the herds and the runs of fish were protected and that over-
consunption, over-use, did not occur. That system of course would
require all of us to trust one another. The comrercial fishernmen
woul d have to trust the sport fishernen. The sport fishernmen would
have to trust the subsistence fishermen. Al Al askans would be
afforded a level of respect. | think that that system which would
throw out the federal bureaucrat that we all have to pay sone sort of
deference to the federal bureaucrat that destroyed the sal non runs of
Sout heast Alaska. | don’'t know anybody in ny district who wants the
federal governnent to cone back in and start managing our fish. They
destroyed them Maybe people in your area want federal managenent. |
hope it’s nmuch nore successful than the federal nanagenent that ny
peopl e saw pre-Statehood. | don’t know why there is such an inability
to trust one another that we can't allow the people of the Kuskokw m
to deci de how many caribou are taken in that area, how many fish are
taken in that river, what communities should take because, you see,
we do have the power under the Constitution to regulate uses of
resources and that’'s very possible for all of us to do right here.
You know the only reason we won't be able to do that is because we
can’t do it on federal |and. They passed a | aw that says we don't get
the right to trust each other there.

| woul d hope soneday Al askans can sit down around the very sane table
and trust each other enough to let the people in None take care of
Norme, |let the people of Wangell take care of Wangell [indisc.] and
| propose that to you and | have before, everybody says, gee that
woul d be a wonderful idea but we really can’'t do that. W’'re all hung
up on ANILCA, we're all hung up on a state subsistence |aw that
doesn’t work very well and [indisc.]. | throw that out because |'d
like you to reconsider that. | believe that’'s what every elder that |
listened to in 1960, as | attended every single land clains hearing
inthis state - | think that’s what they said. | heard them saying we
want autonony. W want some control locally. W don’t want you guys
from Washi ngton, D.C. or sone guy from Wangell to tell us howto run
our fish up here. [Indisc.]
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CHAI RVMAN TORGERSON: You’ Il reconsider that, right? Watever it is — |
don't want to debate sonmething we don't even have before us today.
Senator Hal ford, then Senator W/ ken.

SENATOR HALFORD: Just comng back to the question of the priority
among rural residents, and | assune that was Tier 1l by your
attorney, do we think we have any problemwi th that constitutionally
because that really was a nuch nore accurate priority under the
exi sting constitutional authority, was it not? You nentioned as a
shortcomng of the other proposal that it didn't provide for a
priority anong rural residents as Tier Il of the federal |aw does.
Has there ever been any really serious consideration that Tier Il was
sonmehow unconstitutional under the state constitution?

MR. CALSVELL: Well, in the Kenaitze case, the Al aska Supreme Court
[indisc.].

SENATOR HALFORD: That was on | ocal

MR. CALSVELL: But that was one of the Tier Il criteria so they held
that. ..

SENATOR HALFORD: Ckay, | got you.
MR. CALSVELL: They held that conponent of the Tier Il criteria.

SENATOR HALFORD: Wth the exception of the — | was thinking of the
dependence, alternative resources, the Tier Il criteria that would
remain if you use local as the entry screen criteria. 1°d never

t hought there was any problemw th those criteria.

MR, CALSWELL: | don't - as far as dependence on the resource and
availability of alternative resources, there hasn’t been. But it was
the proximty of the resource — the third criterion that the Suprene
Court. ..

SENATOR HALFORD: You would have to overturn Kenaitze with regard to
the term ‘local’” with a constitutional amendnent to be able to use
it. | agree with that. Just a couple of other questions kind of based
on the first sentence of the constitutional anendnent proposed by the
Governor refers to the subsistence traditions of indigenous people.
Wuld that matter if it was the - as M. Bishop nentioned, the
qguestion was what about the subsistence traditions of non-indi genous
peopl e? Wuld that matter if it said the subsistence traditions of
all Alaskans and is that a place — that seens |ike the statenent that
puts subsistence as the highest and best use. And then the second
portion of the Governor’s proposal is how that is really going to be
inplenented in terns of who gets it but the positive statenent about
subsi stence | would think would apply to all Al askans.

M5. KITKA: | guess our interest in that provision is the recognition
of Native people as indigenous people. W don't see why there’s
anything to be fearful of that. | nean we look at the State of

Hawai i’ s Constitution and they have Hawaiian Native preference rights
right in their constitution. It’s sonmething they' re proud of and |
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just think that that’s a value to have in there. | don't think it
deni grates anybody else by doing it. It just recognizes indigenous
people were the first people here and that - you |ook at
congressional findings on Title VIII and they differ between how they
describe the congressional policy toward Al aska Natives and other
rural residents. | don’t have the words right there but if you | ooked
at that they don't describe them the sanme even in the congressiona
findi ngs.

SENATOR HALFORD: Yea. | haven’t got any problemwth the nention of
i ndi genous people. The thing I was concerned with is it |ooked Iike,
by the way M. Bishop read it, that it is saying that the only
subsi stence traditions that are intended to have a priority were the
subsi stence traditions of indigenous people and | would think that we
woul d be looking at — | nean you don't get to rural people if you
don’t recognize all rural people in terns of the threshold statenent
as well. That's what my concern was. |’m not saying take sonething
out. | was saying add sonet hi ng.

M5. KITKA: |I'm sure that there’s a way that you could redraft-add
ot her |anguage into that. In fact, | think one of our anendnents
m ght have some changes to that provision

SENATOR HALFORD: Wth regard to the third, | guess the third section,
it looks Iike a, b, and ¢, the Attorney General testified that there
is nothing in that section that couldn’t be done already under the
exi sting Constitution and ny thought would be that if we don't need
it to fix something, mybe we don’'t need to put it in there just
because it’s not broken. Is that a piece that is of interest to AFN?

M5. KITKA: | think that that is in there for a specific reason to try
to respond to other Al askans that would like to have it in there
meaning | don’'t believe that originated fromthe Al aska Federation of
Natives. Look at our witten position on the Governor’s package and
our proposed amendnents and the rationale on that. Qur primry
concern is to address the needs of our people in a fair way, in a
permanent way. | nmean the whole issue of shall versus may, we’'re very
fearful that if it says may, we’'re just going to revisit warfare in
the state for the next 20, 30 years and we'd like sonme finality to
this. People are going to go through all this process of voting on a
constitutional anmendnment so that is why we’'re asking for shall versus
may. Like | said, it will just continue on indefinitely if it’s just
at the whim— just the dynamics of the politics of the state and that
troubl es us.

SENATOR HALFORD: The third section, | guess basically you said it’s
not your concern particularly. It was there to answer sone of the..

M5. KITKA: Qur concerns, other than the straight rural priority, iIs
our Native people that live in urban areas and in particular our
Native people that are living in areas surrounded by urban growth and
we, you know, our solutions are anendnents to the Governor’s proposal
all deal around strengthening things Iike that.

SENATOR HALFCRD: Ckay.
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CHAI RMAN TORGERSON: Senator W ken.

SENATOR W LKEN: Thank you M. Chairman. My question revol ved around
line 8 the issue of indigenous peoples, and | think Senator Halford
asked the question | was going to ask so thank you, | have an answer.

CHAI RMAN TORGERSON: Senat or Lincoln

SENATOR LI NCOLN: | have just two quick questions bur first | have to
— nmy good friend on ny right |eaned over when Senator Taylor was
aski ng about expanding the boards of ganme and fish to instead of
advisory to mandatory boards of fish and how | ong that would take to
get through the process of confirmation since we couldn't quite get
t hrough just a couple of names here. | thought that was good.

[ I ndi scerni ble cooments by several nenbers.]

SENATOR LI NCOLN: Wel |l because they’ ' re not advisory see, when they go
from advisory to policy making and we would have to do that
per haps. . .

SENATOR TAYLOR: You' d let the |ocal people elect them

SENATOR LI NCOLN: But anyway M. Chairman — Julie, | asked the other
testifiers what would happen if we do nothing this year on the
subsistence dilemma and 1'd |like to hear your response to that, and
the second question that |1’ve got is how inportant is it to AFN for
t he | anguage of co-nmanagenent in the whatever resolution that we cone
up with for the fish and ganme and ot her resources.

M5. KITKA: Well let me address the co-nmanagenent issue first and,
again, there is soneone in the audience on that that would be, at
sone later tinme if you want to get into that on the whole area of co-
managenent with concrete exanples across the Arctic where that’s used
as well as exanples here in the state. Co-nmanagenent is a very
progressi ve managenent tool. It is sonething where | think the State
of Al aska needs to go towards. It’'s very highly used in Canada, very
successfully, where they have over a thousand Native villages. It’s a
way to involve the local people in decision nmaking. It is not
sonething that state or federal governnment usually voluntarily steps
into it because they're evolving sone authority and they normally
don’t like to do that, at |least the state or federal agencies, and so
it’s sonething that takes |eadership in order to nake happen but |
think that that is one of the essential pieces of the resolution to
this in the long term It not only brings your state of managenent in
the state up into the next century instead of being old and
antiquated on a mlitary-type nodel of bureaucracy, it brings you
into the new age of involving people at the greatest extent at the
| ocal |evel whose lives are affected. That’s ny short version of why
| think it’'s inportant. | wultimately think it wll be an essentia
conponent when you cone to a resolution of this because | believe
that either yourselves, if this gets resolved here, or the Congress,
if it goes back to there, will see in their w sdom that the co-
managenent is sonmething that’s a very powerful tool. It doesn’'t have
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to be a threat to people. It can, like | said, develop in the state
instead of just kind of |ooking at the way people always did things

in the past so | would say it's very inportant to us. It’s very
inportant to different regions in the state. There are successful
nodel s that are working now. [Indisc. - paper shuffling] Delta area,

you can |ook at a nunber of exanples where it is not a threat to
people and yet it enpowers the people to be nore involved in — |
believe that if people are nore involved in that kind of thing,
they’re going to take better care in paying attention to the
resources and the long term survival of the resources so it’'s really
good for the resource in our view

On the issue of what happens - you nean if the Legislature does
nothing, | think that you just see the gridlock stay in place. W're
very happy with the federal advisory boards that are in place that
make up part of the system of the federal subsistence board and our
primary reason — not only have they got 10 plus years of nmaking
deci sions on the gane |level and starting to build nore experience on
the fisheries, but our primary reason is that they’'ve got a |ot of
really good people appointed that are very well respected in their
communities and we respect their judgnent, we respect their
dedi cation, and so we would expect they would continue and do the
best job they could in a systemwhich ultimately really is broken in
the state between the feds and the state so |I know that people would
still take a look at the resource and the welfare of the resource
first, but people would nake that work. |1 do believe that you'd
probably see continuing litigation. You d see continuing conflict.
You would see probably nore people, at least from the Native
community, pull away from wanting to help the state regain
managenent. Already you can see by how few people conme down to the
halls in the special session how nuch people are disillusioned and
are not trustful and don’t believe anything’s going to happen and
what it is is it’s years and years of experience and people’'s stress

level is just not there and so | just think that heightened and
continued that. That’s ny assessnent. It’'s not a very good assessnent
but people will nake the best that they can of that. That’s all | can
t hi nk of .

CHAI RVAN TORGERSON: O her questions?
SENATOR HALFORD: Thank you.

CHAI RVAN TORGERSON: 1'd like to thank all of the panel for com ng out
today and | know - | gave you the letter on short notice so |
appreci ate you hanging out. Make sure we get copies of the things you
wanted us to — oh, we already go them okay. Wth nothing else to
conme before us we will adjourn for today. [APPENDH CES ATTACHED. ]
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REQUIREMENTSFOR STATE RE-ASSUMPTION OF SUBSISTENCE
MANAGEMENT ON THE PUBLIC LANDS

Section 805(d) of ANILCA as amended in 1998,' offers
Al aska the option of managi ng subsistence uses of fish and wildlife
on federal "public lands" if "the State enacts and inplenents |aws
of general applicability which are consistent with, and which
provide for the definition, preference, and participation specified
in, sections 803, 804, and 805." Section 803 defines "subsistence
uses" as, anong other things, "the customary and traditional uses
by rural Al aska residents.” Section 804 requires that "the taking
on the public lands of fish and wildlife for subsistence uses shal
be accorded priority over the taking ... for other purposes.”
Section 804 also requires that, when subsistence takings nust be
restricted for conservation purposes or to protect continued
subsi stence uses, the subsistence priority nust be inplenented
through the application of three criteria (customary and direct
dependence, local residency, and availability of alternative
resources), known in state legal parlance as the "Tier I1”
criteria. Sections 805(a)-(c) establish a local/regional system of
| ocal advisory conmmttees and regional advisory councils for the
purpose, in the words of section 801(5), "of enabling rural
residents who have personal know edge of Ilocal conditions and
requirenents to have a neaningful role in the managenent of fish
and wildlife and of subsistence uses on the public | ands."”

Since the July 1, 1990 effective date of the Al aska Suprene
Court's decision in McDowell v. State, 785 P.2d 1 (Dec. 22, 1989),
the State has been disabled by the Alaska Constitution from
conplying with the conditions set forth in section 805(d) of
ANI LCA. Consequently, the federal Departnents of Agriculture and

' The 1998 anendments, in conjunction with the final "Katie John noratorium" deleted "one
year after the date of enactnent of this Act [i.e., Decenber 2, 1980]" from section
805(a) and "within one year fromthe date of enactnent of this Act" from section 805(d).
Pub. L. No. 105-277, § 339(c), 112 Stat. 2681, 2681-296 (Cct.-21, 1998). By thus
elimnating ANILCA s original one-year deadline. Congress enabled the State to displace
federal nanagerment at any future time that it mght choose to conply with the conditions
of section 805(d).
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the Interior ("the Secretary") have been responsible for managi ng
subsi stence uses of fish and wldlife on federal |ands and waters
for the past 11 years. In MDowell, the Court held that the so-
called "equal access” clauses of Article WVIII of the Al aska
Constitution ("a special type of equal protection guarantee," 785
P.2d at 11) prohibit the Legislature fromaffording a priority for
subsi stence uses on the basis of "rural" residency.” The Court
accordingly invalidated the 1986 state subsistence |aw insofar as
it limted the subsistence priority to rural residents, as required
by AN LCA. Subsequently, in State v. Kenaitze Indian Tribe, 894
P.2d 632 (1995), the Court unaninously invoked MDowell’s
construction of the "equal access" clauses to prohibit the
Legislature from utilizing local residency for any subsistence-
priority purpose, even as one of the three "Tier II" criteria of
dependence and need to determ ne which subsistence users should be
preferred when a particular fish or wldlife resource is not
sufficiently abundant to satisfy all subsistence uses.3 The Court
viewed the statutory "proximty" criterion as a residency-based bar
to participation in Tier Il subsistence uses, and hence an

? The three provisions of Article VIII which the Court terms the "equal access clauses"

are the Common Use Cl ause (8 3), the No Exclusive Fishery Clause (8§ 15), and the Uniform
Application dause (8§ 17).

The Common Use C ause provides:

Wherever occurring in their natural state, fish, wildlife, and waters are
reserved to the people for comon use.

The No Exclusive Fishery C ause provides:

No excl usive right or special privilege of fishery shall be created or authorized
in the natural waters of the State. This section does not restrict the power of
the State to linmt entry into any fishery for the purposes of resource
conservation, to prevent econom c distress anong fishermen and those dependent
upon them for a livelihood and to pronpte the efficient devel opnent of
aquaculture in the State.

The Uniform Application C ause provides:

Laws and regul ati ons governi ng the use or disposal of natural resources shall
apply equally to all persons simlarly situated with reference to the subject
matter and purpose to be served by the | aw or regul ation.

The Sustained Yield Clause (8 4) also is relevant; it provides:

Fish, forests, wildlife, grasslands, and all other replenishable resources
belonging to the State shall be utilized, devel oped, and mai ntai ned on the
sustained yield principle, subject to preferences anong beneficial uses.

® The three Tier Il criteria of the 1992 state subsistence law, AS 16.05.258(b)(4)(B), are
(i) "customary and direct dependence"” on the resource "for human consunption as a
mai nstay, of livelihood," (ii) "proximty of the donmicile of the subsistence user" to the
resource, and (iii) "the ability of the subsistence user to obtain food if subsistence is
restricted or elimnated." As nentioned, section 804 of AN LCA inposes a simlar schene,

t hough the state criteria are not identical.
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inpermssible limtation on admssion to the "subsistence user
group.” See 894 P.2d at 638-642.

This paper briefly addresses the | aw nmaking steps Al aska nust
undertake in order to conmply wth section 805(d) of AN LCA and
di spl ace federal "public |ands" subsistence managenent. To achieve
that goal, the Alaska Constitution nmust be anmended (or revised),
and any inplenenting legislation would have to differ in
significant respects from the provisions of ©previous state
subsi stence laws, i.e., those adopted in 1978, 1986, and 1992 (the
current |aw).

Must the Alaska Constitution be changed before the State will be able to meet

the conditions of section 805(d)?

Consistent with section 805(d) of AN LCA (as anended in 1998
by repeal of the one-year deadline), the Secretary's regulations
provi de a rul emaki ng mechani sm for Al aska to supersede the Federa
Subsi st ence Managenent Program governing public |ands whenever the
State has enacted and inplenented subsistence managenent and use
laws that conform to the requirenents of sections 803-805. 50
C.F.R 8 100.14(d). Since the relevant provisions of ANILCA plainly
require that "rural Al aska residents" be accorded priority for
subsi stence hunting and fishing on the public |ands, any such state
laws nust, at a mninmum provide a subsistence priority to rura
Al askans. While AN LCA does not prohibit the State from all ow ng
state-law "subsi stence uses" by non-rural residents, any privilege
given to non-rural users nust be subordinate to the priority right
of rural wusers. And that can be acconplished only through a
priority schene that ultimately enploys rural residency as an
eligibility criterion. But the Alaska Suprenme Court has
unequi vocally held that the Al aska Constitution forbids any such
resi dency-based limtation on participation in subsistence hunting
and fishing. It thus appears that the popular (and official)
understanding that a change in the Al aska Constitution is necessary
for the State to "regain" managenent authority is entirely correct.

Neither the Legislature nor the people legislating by
initiative, of course, nmay enact |aws that alter the nmeaning of the
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Al aska Constitution.® Any attenpt to legislate a rural subsistence
priority wi thout an authorizing constitutional change would thus
appear to be dooned from the outset—at |east so |ong as MDowel |
and Kenaitze remain good |law. And there is no reason to believe (or
hope) that the MDowel |/ Kenaitze construction of the constitutional

"equal access" clauses will not continue to be good | aw. The Al aska
Suprene Court will "'not lightly overrule our past decisions,'" and
in fact will do so only where it is "'clearly convinced the rule

was originally erroneous or is no |longer sound because of changed
conditions, and that nore good than harm would result from a

departure from precedent.'"™ State v. Sumerville, 948 P.2d 469
(1998) (invalidating legislative attenpt to overrule a 1974
constitutional ruling prohibiting "reciprocal di scovery" in

crimnal cases).

It is difficult to conceive of an argunment for overruling
McDowel | and Kenaitze that would satisfy those standards. The
result in McDowell was endorsed by four justices, with only Justice
Rabinowitz dissenting. (In addition, Justice More supported the
result on the alternative ground that the rural preference was a
violation of equal protection under the Equal Rights C ause of the
Al aska Constitution. 785 P.2d at 12-13.) The MDowel | decision was
the product of extensive deliberation and debate; as wong-headed
as sone may believe it to have been, it nonetheless stands as the
authoritative construction of the "equal access" clauses of Article
VIIl—as evidenced nost promnently by its reinforcement in the
Kenaitze decision five years later, in which all justices
(i ncluding Justice Rabinowtz) joined. Although the loss of state
managenent over the public |lands may seem a harsh price to pay for
"equal access" as construed in MDowell, the Court was fully aware
of, and expressly evaluated, that <certain consequence of its
decision (785 P.2d at 3, 4, and 10 n.20), which in any event had
becone abundantly obvious by the tinme the Court reaffirnmed MDowel |

4 In the present context, noreover, there is an additional barrier to legislation by
initiative. Al though natural resource management generally may be a proper subject for
the initiative process, Brooks v. Wight, 971 P.2d 1025 (Al aska 1999) (upholding wolf-
snare-ban initiative), that process may not be used to nmke an "appropriation"” of state
"assets," such as by giving a wildlife-use preference to one user group as against
another. Pullen v. Uner, 923 P.2d 54 (Al aska 1996) (invalidating proposed “F.1.S. H
initiative," which reserved a priority for salnon harvests by personal use, sport, and
subsi stence fisheries before allocating any portion to commercial fisheries).
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five years later in Kenaitze. Public policy, public officials

regulators and legislators, and private expectations, noreover,
have nmade primary adjustnments to the Court's constitutional
interpretation. The MDowel|-Kenaitze rule, construing the State's
organic law, sinply does not appear vulnerable to reconsideration
at this late date. The "“inpasse” is of constitutional dinension

and it nmust be addressed at that |evel.

The nore difficult question is whether the necessary
constitutional change can be acconplished nerely by "anmendnent"”
(proposed to the people by a two-thirds vote of each house of the
Legi slature), or whether it entails a "revision" (which requires a
constitutional convention). The distinction is "that a revision is
a change which alters the substance and integrity of our
Constitution in a rmnner nmeasured both qualitatively and
gquantitatively," Bess v. Umner, 985 P.2d 979, 982 (Al aska 1999),
whereas "[t] he process of amendnent ... is proper for those changes
which are "few, sinple, independent, and of conparatively snall
inportance.'" 1d. at 987. The "core determination," we are told
"I's always the sane: whether the changes are so significant as to
create a need to consider the constitution as an organic whole."
Id. Beyond that, the principles set out in Bess are rather
illusive, especially as they mght apply to the issue of anending
the Constitution to legalize a rural-residency-based subsistence
priority. One can envision form dable argunents on both sides of
the question. For present purposes, it suffices to say that the
Constitution nust be altered in order for the State to satisfy the
conditions for state mnagenent inposed by section 805(d) of
ANI LCA, but whet her t hat change nust be produced by a
constitutional convention, or can be effectuated through the nore
expedi ent process of a constitutional anmendnent, is an open, and
not easy, question.

Prescri bi ng t he necessary contours of t he required
constitutional change is also sonmewhat perplexing. In order to
achieve the desired result—+e-assunption of state managenent—+he
constitutional change will need to be specific enough to ensure
that a statutory "rural" subsistence priority, consistent wth
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ANl LCA, w1l pass state constitutional nuster. As a rule, “a
specific [constitutional] anmendnent controls other nore general
provisions with which it mght conflict.” Bess v. Uner, 985 P.2d
at 988 n.57. But it is also "a well accepted principle of judicial
construction that, whenever possible, every provision of the
Constitution should be given neaning and effect, and related
provi sions should be harnonized." Park v. State, 528 P.2d 785, 786-
87 (Al aska 1974). In the specific context of burdens on the "equa

access" principles of Article VIII of the Al aska Constitution, our
Suprene Court has repeatedly held that even |egislation authorized
by constitutional anmendment, such as the 1972 Limted Entry
Amendnent to section 15 of Article VIII (the No Exclusive Right of

Fishery d ause), nmust be narroWly drawn to acconplish a
constitutionally inportant purpose, and “nust be designed for the
| east possible infringenent on Article VIII's open access val ues.™

McDowel |, 785 P.2d at 30; accord. Oansichek v. State, 763 P.2d 488,
492 n.10 (1988); Johns v. CFEC, 758 P.2d 1256. 1266 (1988); State
v. Ostrosky, 667 P.2d 1184. 1191 (1983).

Thus, the nore explicit the constitutional |anguage—+n terns
both of its purpose and its intended effect—the nore likely that
i npl enenting legislation wll be sustained agai nst chal |l enges based
on other applicable constitutional provisions, |ike the equal-
access and equal -protection clauses. A relatively specific
constitutional anendnent (or revision, if necessary) tracking
ANI LCA's key ternms likely would validate any |egislative schene
necessary to satisfy the requirenents of section 805(d) of AN LCA
For exanpl e:

Consistently with the sustained yield principle, customary and

traditional subsistence uses® of fish and wildlife by rural

Al aska residents shall be accorded priority over all other

uses. Wenever restrictions on subsistence uses of a fish or

wildlife resource are necessary for conservation purposes,
preference shall be given to those rural residents with the

greatest customary and direct dependence on the resource as
the mainstay of [livelihood, who reside closest to the

® As described at pages 8-10 bel ow, however, the phrase "customary and traditional uses"

has acquired distinct neanings under state statutory law that are inconsistent wth
ANI LCA' s intended neaning of the same words. To foreclose the possibility that these sane
words in a constitutional anendment wll be interpreted as being inconsistent wth
ANILCA, it must be made manifest in the process of anending (or reusing) the Constitution
that the "customary and traditional" standard being added to state constitutional law is
intended to be at |east as protective as the AN LCA standard.
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resource, and who have the |east availability of alternative
resour ces.

The farther the constitutional |anguage strays fromthat or a
simlar degree of specificity, the nore problematic the
constitutionality of any inplenenting | egislation becones.

Assuming an adequate change in the Alaska Constitution, what sort of

implementing legislation is necessary for re-assumption of state management?

Section 805(d) of ANLCA as well as the Secretary's
regulation, 50 C.F.R 8§ 100.14(d), condition state subsistence
managemnent on the public lands on the "enactnent] and
i npl enentation] of [state] |laws of general applicability, which are
consistent with, and which provide for the definition, preference,
and participation specified in, sections 803, 804, and 805."
Al though the State's inability to provide the rural priority
mandated by AN LCA caused the surrender of state nanagenent
authority, there are a nunber of other critical issues that now
woul d also need to be resolved in any inplenenting legislation in
order for state law to be brought into harnony with sections 803-
805. The "rural" issue itself, however, wll continue to be a
significant |egislative challenge, even if the Constitution were
anmended to explicitly provide for a subsistence priority for rura
residents. Following is a brief discussion of the major issues
successful inplenenting legislation will need to resol ve.

The "rural" issue. The State has yet to devel op an approach to
identifying "rural residents" that is consistent with ANILCA. The
courts have held the current statutory definition of "rural area"
(from the 1986 subsistence |aw)—a community or area of the state
in which the noncomercial, customary, and traditional use of fish
or gane for personal or famly consunption is a principal
characteristic of the econony of the community or area,” AS
16. 05.940(27)—+o0 be inconsistent with ANILCA. Kenaitze Indian Tribe
v. Alaska, 860 F.2d 312 (9th Cr. 1988), cert. denied, 491 U S. 905
(1989). Although the "rural area" definition has been noribund
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since the McDowel|l decision, it remains on the books. And, in the
1992 subsistence l|law, the Legislature essentially adopted the
inverse of the "rural area" definition to identify "nonsubsistence
areas." AS 16.05.258(c) ("an area or community where dependence
upon subsistence is not a principal characteristic of the econony,
culture, and way of life of the area or comunity"). In other
words, current non-subsistence areas are the state-law equival ent
of non-rural areas. See State v. Kenaitze Indian Tribe, 894 P.2d
632, 634 (Al aska 1995).

This approach is inconpatible with ANLCA under which a
nunber of communities are classified as "rural" which the state-I|aw
definition (previously invalidated by the Nnth Crcuit's 1988
Kenaitze decision) would <classify as non-rural, and hence
ineligible for the subsistence priority. See 50 CF. R 8§ 100.15
100. 23. As evidenced by the ever-changing approach of the Federa
Subsi stence Board to the Kenai Peninsula, furthernore, even the
correct interpretation of "rural Alaska residents”" under AN LCA
remai ns unsettled. And the issue probably will continue to evade
resolution so long as the traditional hunting and fishing grounds
of Alaska Native tribes are deened ineligible for the subsistence
priority solely because of the "urbanizing” influx of the non-
i ndi genous popul ation. But the salient point here is that, in order
to satisfy the requirenents of section 805(d) of AN LCA and secure
secretarial approval for the re-assunption of state nanagenent,
inplenmenting legislation will need to abandon previous attenpts to
define "rural'' in an uncomon way. Perhaps the surest way of
proceeding would be for the legislation sinply to direct the fish
and ganme boards to accord the subsistence priority to “rural Al aska
residents,” expressly delegating to the boards the task of
determining eligibility; then for the boards, in turn, to identify
the same communities and areas the Federal Subsistence Board has

already designated as “"rural." That, of course, won't  be
satisfactory to those who feel that they have been wongly
classified as urban, but it wll likely satisfy the Secretary. Any

future refinenents to the "rural determ nation" process that m ght
be required by the courts could be resolved easily enough by the
boards through further rulemaking, since the statute (if it nerely
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mrrors the |anguage of ANLCA) would not have been placed in
jeopardy, as it was in the Kenaitze litigation in the 1980's.

"Customary and traditional uses" —who? In 1978, as AN LCA was
making its way through Congress, the Legislature enacted a
subsi stence law that included a definition of "subsistence uses"
adopted froma version of ANILCA that had al ready passed the House,
but not yet the Senate. The 1978 state | aw defined subsi stence uses
as "customary and traditional wuses in Alaska" for specified
pur poses. See Madi son v. Al aska Dept. of Fish & Gane, 696 P.2d 168,
170 (Alaska 1985). As finally enacted in 1980, section 803 of
ANl LCA al so defines subsistence uses as "customary and traditional
uses,” though in the nmeantinme Congress had substituted "by rura
Al aska residents” for "in Alaska." Putting the "rural" issue aside,
t he bedrock standard—custonmary and traditional uses"—was identical
in both federal and state law. So it has renmained: "Despite
repeated | egal challenges to and nultiple revisions of the [state]
subsi stence |aws, 'subsistence uses' have long been defined in
terms of 'customary and traditional uses."' Payton v. State, 938
P.2d 1036, 1042 (Al aska 1997). Remarkably, however, these identi cal
words have neanings under state law that are entirely different
from their federal meani ngs. Perhaps the nost significant
difference is the way the customary-and-traditional-use standard
operates under state law to determine eligibility for participation
in particul ar subsistence hunts and fisheries.

Sandwi ched between the MDowell (1989) and Kenaitze (1995)
cases is the Alaska Suprene Court's decision in State v. Mrry 836
P.2d 358, 365-368 (1992), which held, anong other things, that "al
Al askans,” no matter where they reside or what their circunstances,
are eligible to travel anywhere in the State and participate in
subsi stence hunting and fishing on wequal terns wth |oca
subsi stence wusers. The Court held that the "customary and
traditional uses" standard does not provide any basis for
di stingui shing anong subsistence wusers.® This, of «course, is
contrary to the way in which ANILCA has always been interpreted.

® This holding derives largely from the Court's |ongstanding and consistent insistence

that the custonmary-and-traditional standard refers exclusively to "uses," and cannot be
applied to identify "users." Payton, 938 P.2d at 1042; Mrry, 836 P.2d at 368: MDowell,
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In other words, under AN LCA even a qualified rural subsistence
user is not automatically eligible to travel to some distant part
of the State, outside of the traditional hunting or fishing
territory of his or her place of residence, and engage in
subsi stence hunting and fishing on the public lands. See 50 C. F.R
88 100.15 (describing the process) and 100.24 (specifying the
subsi stence hunts and fisheries and the rural residents (by place
of residence) eligible to participate in them

Since the "customary and traditional wuses" standard has
acquired a settled neaning under state law that is inconsistent
wth its established neaning under AN LCA any inplenenting
| egi sl ation designed to conply wth section 805(d) will need to do
nore than sinply parrot the section 803 definition of subsistence
uses. This is because, when a l|legislature adopts a term from an
existing statute, or a term which otherwi se possesses an
authoritative neaning, it is presuned that the |awmkers intended
to incorporate that sanme neaning into the new statute, unless a
contrary intent is nmade manifest.’ In order to be consistent with,
and provide for the definition and preference specified in, AN LCA
therefore, any definition of subsistence as "customary and
traditional uses" nust also make it clear that the definition nmakes
eligible for participation only those rural residents of areas or
comunities which have customary and traditional wuse of the
particul ar subsistence resources. Statutory |anguage that s
effective for this purpose wll undoubtedly be awkward, perhaps
even redundant, but it is necessary to achieve the consistency
required by section 805(d).

"Customary and traditional wuses"—what? The Al aska Suprene
Court in Mrry also held, quite astonishingly, that the "customary
and traditional uses" standard affords |egal protection only for
"how fish and ganme are used [after they are taken], not how they
are harvested." 836 P.2d at 370. The standard does not, in other
words, protect "traditional patterns and nethods of taking fish and
gane for subsistence purposes,” or "traditional and customary

785 P.2d at 9 n.9; Madison, 696 P.2d at 174.
" E.g.. Miller v. BP Exploration (Al aska) Inc., 923 P.2d 783, 788 (Al aska 1996); State v.
O Neill Investigations. Inc. 609 P.2d 520,532 (Al aska 1980).
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met hods of subsistence takings."” I1d., see also Totenoff v. State
905 P.2d 954, 960-961 (Al aska 1995), cert. denied, 517 U S. 1244
(1996). This inplausible construction of the custonmary-and-

traditional term conflicts with both ANILCA, see generally Native
Village of Quinhagak v. United States, 35 F.3d 388 (9th Cr. 1994);
Bobby v. Alaska, 718 F. Supp. 764 (D. Alaska 1989), and common
sense. This dichotony, too, nust be elimnated in any inplenenting
| egislation designed to displace federal managenent (perhaps by
defining "subsistence uses" as "customary and traditional patterns,
practices, nethods and neans of takings and uses").

"Reasonabl e opportunity.” The "reasonabl e opportunity"
standard of the state-law subsistence priority (first adopted in
the 1986 |aw, now appearing at AS 16.05.258(b) and (f)) is wdely
acknow edged to be inconsistent with ANILCA. See Bobby v. Al aska
718 F. Supp. at 781.° That and any similar standard will need to be
omtted from inplenmenting |egislation ainmed at satisfying section
805(d) .

"No subsistence defense." State law purports to strip
subsi stence users of "a defense [to a prosecution for a taking
violation] that the taking was done for subsistence uses,"” AS

16. 05. 259, which the Alaska Supreme Court has construed as
prohibiting substantive (though not procedural) defenses by
subsi stence users. Totenoff, 905 P.2d at 969-973. This, too, is
inconsistent with ANILCA, United States v. Al exander, 938 F.2d 942
(9th CGr. 1991); Bobby v. Al aska, 718 F. Supp. at 783-788, and
should be repealed in <conjunction wth any section 805(d)
i npl enenting | egislation.

"Customary trade." Section 803 of AN LCA defines subsistence
uses to include "for barter or for sharing for personal or famly

consunption; and for customary) trade," see United States v.
Al exander, supra, whereas the state-law definition qualifies
customary trade with "for personal or famly consunption”: "for the

customary trade, barter, or sharing for personal or famly

® One of the conditional, never-enacted AN LCA amendnents procured by the State in the

1997 “Katie John noratoriunm would have added "reasonabl e opportunity" as a qualification
of the section 804 priority. Pub. L. No. 105-83, 8 316(b)(5), IIl Stat. 1543, 1592-1593
(Nov. 14, 1997). That provision (along with the other conditional anendnents) was
repealed on Decenber 1, 1998, without ever taking effect, because the Legislature
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consunption.” AS 16.05.940(32). This inconsistency—between the
unqualified authorization for customary trade of subsistence
resources in section 803 and the state-law |imtation of such trade
to resources taken "for personal or famly consunption”—derives
fromthe 1978 subsistence |law, and existed at the time of ANILCA's
passage. The inconsistency was solved to the Secretary's
satisfaction at that tinme by regulatory action of the fish and gane
boards, see 5 AAC 99.010(b)(7),° but it wll now need to be
resol ved by statute in any inplenenting |egislation.

Geographic scope of the priority. The state-law subsistence
priority has been interpreted as not applying to subsistence fish
and wildlife resources throughout their mgratory range. Native
Village of Elim v. State, 990 P.2d 1, 12-13 (Alaska 1999). The
ANI LCA priority, in contrast, clearly attaches to such resources
t hroughout their mgratory travels. That is, the ANILCA priority
prevents resources from being taken for non-subsistence uses in one
part of their range if that would deprive rural residents in
another part of the range of sufficient resources to satisfy
subsi stence uses. See, e.g., 50 CF.R 88 100.10(a) (the Secretary
retains her "existing authority to restrict or elimnate hunting,
fishing, or trapping activities [outside of the] public |ands when
such activities interfere with subsistence hunting, fishing, or
trapping on the public lands to such an extent as to result in a
failure to provide the subsistence priority"). The |less protective
scope of state law will need to be revised in any inplenenting
legislation to make clear that the subsistence priority applies
t hroughout the mgratory range of all fish and wildlife that are
customarily and traditionally taken for subsistence uses.

The regional advisory council system State statutory |aw has
never provided a system of regional advisory councils as required
by sections 805(a)-(d) of ANILCA. This deficiency, as with several
ot hers nentioned above, was renedied in the early 1980's (in order
to secure secretarial certification of conpliance with ANILCA) by a
regul ation pronulgated by the fish and gane boards creating a

declined to accept the congressional conditions. Id. at 1595 (8§ 316(d)).
° The sane rul emaking process was enployed to renmedy the lack of a "rural" limtation in
the 1978 law, but the Court invalidated that regulation (as unauthorized by statute) in
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system of six regional councils. See 5 AAC 96.200, et seq. That
state system however, was never adequately staffed or funded, and
it never enpowered local rural residents with the "neaningful”
managenent rol e envisioned by Congress. As soon as the State | ost
ANI LCA managenent authority in the wake of the MDowel |l decision
the state regional council system woefully inadequate though it

was, was immediately de-funded and deconm ssi oned. In view of
that history, any inplenenting legislation ained at reassum ng
state subsi stence nmanagenent on the public lands will need both to
specifically create a regional council system as prescribed by

sections 805(a)-(d) and guarantee adequate funding and staffing for
it.

The above discussion is not intended to constitute an
exhaustive listing of the issues that need to be addressed in any
i npl enmenting |egislation necessary for the State to conply wth
section 805(d) of ANILCA and displace federal subsi st ence
managenent authority on the public lands. Nor does it purport to be
an outline of the essential conponents of such legislation. This
di scussion, rather, is nmerely an attenpt to highlight the nore
significant and obvious conflicts between the state and federal
subsi stence laws that have arisen over the years—onflicts that
will of necessity require resolution in the course of any effort by
the State to reassune full subsistence managenent authority.

its 1985 Madi son deci sion.
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A Catholic Perspective on Subsistence

Our Responsibility Toward Alaska's Bounty and Our Human Family
A Pastoral Letter of the Catholic Bishops of Alaska

God has blessed Alaska with an abundance of natural resources, which form the backbone of
the life and economy of the people of Alaska. The harvest and sale of timber/fish, wildlife, oil, and

minerals stimulate the cash economy, create jobs, and allow Alaskans to provide for their families.

The fish and wildlife resources must be alocated fairly and justly to promote the common
good when they are insufficient to meet the needs of all. In recent years, Alaskans have engaged in a
spirited dialogue over the alocation of these resources and the subsistence needs of Alaskas

residents.[1]

We, the Catholic Bishops of Alaska, enter this dialogue to outline how Catholic social
teaching can serve as aguide in analyzing the situation.[2] We write primarily to the Catholic

people of the state, but we invite all Alaskans to reflect upon our contribution to the dialogue.

In articulating a biblical view of the Catholic faith, the Second Vatican Council in 1965
criticized the tragic separation between faith and everyday life. The council stated Catholics cannot
"immerse themselves in earthly activities as if these |atter were utterly foreign to religion, and
religion were nothing more than the fulfillment of acts of worship and the observance of afew moral
obligations.”[3] In setting, forth that vision, the Council sought to return Catholicsto avision of a
lived faith givento all Christiansin the Sermon on the Mount where Jesus called us to be
peacemakers in the world. (Matthew 5:1-12).

We are not politicians or lawyers, and our purpose in writing is not to take a political or legal

position on the resolution of the issue. Rather, with this pastoral letter we provide a Catholic
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anaysis of subsistence that is not yet a part of the public debate. Catholic social principles can
provide a perspective on social issues that will help Catholics to form their consciences, to engagein

the public debate, and to take appropriate action.
Subsistence in Alaska— A Lega History

Understanding how the current impasse emerged is critical to resolving the subsistence issue.
In 1971, in order to settle the land claims of Alaska Native peoples, Congress enacted the Alaska
Native Claims Settlement Act (Settlement Act).[4] The Settlement Act extinguished aboriginal
claims to hunting and fishing and gave Alaska Natives title to 44 million acres of land and $962.5
million. [5] When enacting the Settlement Act, Congress also promised to protect the subsistence
needs of the Alaska Native peoples and directed the Secretary of Interior to take the necessary steps
to provide that protection. The Congressional Conference Report was dear in its concern for Alaska
Native subsistence protection, stating, "The conference committee, after careful consideration,
believes that all Native interests in subsistence resource lands can and will be protected by the

Secretary through exercise of his existing withdrawal authority." [6]

Nearly a decade later, in 1980, the Alaska National Interest Lands Conservation Act (Lands
Act) was enacted for the designation and conservation of public lands in Alaska and to provide that
those engaged in a subsistence lifestyle could continue that lifestyle.[7] The Lands Act fulfilled the
promise Congress had made to the Alaska Native peoples when it enacted the Settlement Act. Using
race-neutral language, Title VIII of the Lands Act provides that subsistence uses by rural Alaska
residents be the priority consumptive use of fish and wildlife resources on federal public lands. [8]
Subsistence uses by rural residents cannot be restricted until all other uses are curtailed and
regulations of subsistence must be consistent with customary and traditional uses. [9] When

populations are healthy, however, no limit on other consumptive uses is necessary, and all users

have harvest opportunities.

The Lands Act recognizes the state's traditional role as manager of fish and wildlife on al

federal lands in Alaska, but requires the state to manage these resources on federal lands according

to the federal subsistence requirement[10] Initialy, in response to the Lands Act, state law limited
subsistence to rural residents and the state implemented Title V111 of the Lands Act from 1986 until
1989. However, in 1989 the Alaska Supreme Court ruled that the Alaska Constitution precluded the
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state from granting priority accessto fish and wildlife based on place of residence. [11]

As a consequence of the Alaska Supreme Court ruling, the state could no longer guarantee a
subsistence priority for rura residents. In response, the federal government in 1990 began
implementing Title VIII of the Lands Act on most federally owned lands in Alaska. In 1999, the

federa government significantly expanded its management to include regulation of subsistence

harvests in many navigable waters throughout Alaska. The state continues to regulate all uses in

areas not subject to federal management, and in areas subject to federal subsistence management

when not preempted by conflicting federal regulations. [12]
The State of Dialogue on Subsistence

Since the Alaska Supreme Court’'s 1989 ruling, Alaskans have searched for ways to

recognize and provide for subsistence needs of residents while returning full authority for fish and

wildlife management to the state. In recent years, the debate has crystallized into two primary

guestions:

Should the state amend its constitution to allow for a rural priority? Should Congress amend the

Lands Act to eliminate the rural priority and allow equal accessfor all Alaskans?

While the particulars of the subsistence issue are unique to Alaska, similar debates have
occurred throughout human history under similar circumstances. John Paul 11 has noted, "Delicate
problems arise when a minority group puts forward claims which have particular political
implications. ...In such delicate circumstances, dialogue and negotiation are the obligatory path to
peace. The willingness of parties involved to meet and talk to one another is the indispensable
condition for reaching an equitable solution to the complex problems that can seriously obstruct

peace."[13]

Dialogue on the protection of subsistence rights began during the negotiation of the
Settlement Act, and resulted nine years later in an apparent resolution in the Lands Act. What
Congress envisioned at the time of the Settlement Act as a protection of Alaska Native subsistence
rights was codified as a rural subsistence priority in the Lands Act. Some felt that the Alaska
Natives had compromised their original claim to a "Native preference’ and agreed to a rural
subsistence priority. [14] The Lands Act statute resulted in a subsistence priority that included all

rural residents, but did not include Alaska Natives living in urban areas.
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For some Alaskans, a rural subsistence priority is seen as discriminatory, contradicting the
state congtitutional provisions that provide for equal access for all. This perspective upholds the
notion of equal access and opportunity of all peoples. We recognize the rationale of this argument

and acknowledge its place in the public debate.

We note at the onset, however, that "equal access' in itself does not guarantee a fair
resolution. Due to the importance of the Alaska Constitution Article V11 equal access provisionsin
the subsistence debate, we address the moral implications of upholding equal access above all other

values.

First, equal access is a means toward achieving the universal destination of goods, [15] not
an end in and of itself. Public policy should strive to fulfill the Creator's intent of providing for the
needs of God's children, but it is not difficult to envision scenarios in which "equal access' provides
opportunity only to those most able to take advantage of the opportunity. [16] Pope Paul VI
recognizes that equality can sometimes result in exploitation and discrimination. "Without a
renewed education in solidarity, an overemphasis on equality can give rise to an individualism in

which each one claims his own right without wishing to be answerable for the common good. "[17]

Second, equal treatment assumes that all citizens begin on equal footing with equal
opportunity. Such is not the case in Alaska. The original inhabitants of Alaska had little say in the
century of political events leading to statehood, and had to adapt to new economic, legal, and value
systems. By enshrining equal access provisions at the time of statehood, the constitutions authors
may have created an injustice for the Alaska Native peoples. Perhaps this injustice should be part of
the debate, addressed with compassion, honesty, creativity, and respect.

Finally, unequal treatment can result from recognition that the circumstances of all people's

lives are not identical and sometimes those circumstances dictate disparate treatment. [18] We must
distinguish between those policies that unjustly discriminate, and those that require recognition of

differences among peoples. The former must be fought aggressively, while the latter must be crafted
to ensure that justice is achieved. A system which provides subsistence opportunities for al
Alaskans, but which affords a priority for some residentsin time of limited resources, may achieve

greater justice than ssimple equal accessif it is created prudently and administered responsibly.

Justice has never required a mathematical equality among people. The Church describes
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three dimensions of justice: commutative, distributive, and social.[19] Commutative justice demands
fundamental fairness in agreements between individuals or private groups. Distributive justice
speaks to the allocation of income, wealth, and power, and suggests that the allocation be viewed in
light of the impact on those whose material needs are not met. Finally, social, or contributive, justice

describes the duty of all members of acommunity to foster the welfare of the whole community.

Allowing equal access to fish and wildlife resources during times of resource scarcity does
not assure a just resolution of the issue. Equal access does not always result in a practical fairness
for those who may not have a means of access or for the community as a whole. Recognizing that no
solution is simple, we ask our Catholics to enter the dialogue with a commitment to apply the social

teachings of our Church and to reflect the love of Christ for all people.
Catholic Social Teaching

The social teachings of the Church, founded on the Gospel and devel oped extensively during
the past century, provide principles and guidelines for developing a Christian perspective on the
social and moral issues of our day. In attempting to understand subsistence and in creating afish and
wildlife allocation system that fairly determines harvest opportunities in times of shortage, the
principles of solidarity, the preferential option for the poor and vulnerable, subsidiarity, care of

creation, and the dignity of work are particularly relevant.
Solidarity

From the time of Genesis to today, we continue to ask, "Am | my brother's keeper?' The
response of Christians, both then and now, is a definitive "Yes' - we are indeed our brothers and
sisters keepers.[20] It is only through community that we fully realize our human dignity and
together promote the common good. An injustice to any member of the human family is

incompatible with the common good and with our own human dignity.

Solidarity allows us to see "others' as "neighbors' and impels us to love one another, share
with one another, and recognize that we are one human family - regardless of geographic, racial,
economic, or ideological differences. The failureto live in solidarity with one another can have dire
consequences, as Jesus made clear in the parable of Lazarus and the rich man (Luke 16:19-31). It

was the rich man's failure to recognize Lazarus needs, to stand in solidarity with Lazarus, which led
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to his eternal condemnation.

There are many valid interests at stake in the debate on subsistence, but finding the delicate
balance among personal interests and the common good requires a commitment to solidarity. The
solidarity to which Christians must aspire is an active one. "If a brother or sister has nothing to wear
and has no food for the day, and one of you saysto them, 'Go in peace, keep warm, and eat well," but
you do not give them the necessities of the body, what good isit?" (James 2:15-16). As John Paul 11
wrote, solidarity "is not a feeling of vague compassion or shallow distress at the misfortunes of so
many people,” but rather "a firm and persevering determination to commit oneself to the common
good." [21]

Christians who dynamically live out the call to solidarity find themselves standing with their
brothers and sisters. One aspect of solidarity that is of particular import in the subsistence dialogue
is the requirement to show respect and honor for the culture and traditions of indigenous peoples.
[22] In Alaska, where the indigenous peoples have become a minority population, it isincumbent on
the larger society to protect and safeguard the right of the Alaska Native people to preserve their
cultures.[23] Protecting subsistence rights is one of the most important issues facing Alaska Natives,
due to the centrality of subsistence to the health of the cultures. [24] More than 10,000 years ago
Alaska Natives ancestors, Alaska's first subsistence gatherers, arrived in Alaska. For thousands of
years, the Alaska Native peoples lived in a subsistence economy, drawing their human and spiritual

values from the heritage of the land, the water, and the wildlife.

Today, the Alaska Native cultures contribute enormously to Alaskan society with traditional
perspectives on respect for creation and the family, particularly elders; rich and diverse Native
languages; and the creativity and emotional power of art and dance. All of these point to a dynamic,

vibrant, and ultimately joyful expression of humanity's finest efforts and insights.

In spite of this cultural richness, there is today a collective vulnerability of Alaska Native
peoples and their traditions. Much like the experience of the indigenous peoples in all of North
America, Alaska Native peoples found mixed blessings in their encounter with the European and
American ways of life. Much was gained from the encounter, but there also resulted many instances
of cultural oppression and injustice. [25] While not placing blame, the Alaska Native Commission

has documented a "long-term and concerted assault on Alaska Native cultures." [26]

We Catholic Bishops acknowledge that there have been times when Catholic leaders and
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teachers contributed to that assault on the Alaska Native cultures or tailed to counter it. We must not
bury that past. We are proud, however, of the missionaries who provided education and technical

advancements to the indigenous people, along with the good news of the Gospel.

Today, as a consequence of the rapid transitions the Alaska Native peoples have undergone,
particularly during the past century, they find themselves facing enormous difficulties. Alaska
Natives as a group endure the highest poverty in the state. Several of the indigenous languages are
threatened with extinction and many communities still suffer the consequences of decades of

cultural suppression. Dismal statistics indicate the perilous situation of the Alaska Native cultures:

» Thesuicide rate of Native males 20 to 24 years old is more than 30 times the national suicide

rate for all age groups.

* Natives are 16 percent of Alaska's population, but represent 32 percent of the prison

population.
» The Native substance abuse mortality rate is 3.5 times the non-Native rate.[ 27]

This evidence suggests a degree of disintegration of the traditional culture and its values.
The importance of subsistence to maintaining Alaska Native cultura heath cannot be
underestimated. According to the report of the Alaska Native Commission, "Subsistence, being
integral to [Alaska Native] world view and among the strongest ties to their ancient cultures, is as
much spiritual and ultural asit is physical. "[28] Subsistence has been described as "the main thread,
in the overall fabric of Native culture."[29]

In developing a resolution to the subsistence question, Christians should stand in solidarity
with those suffering an erosion of culture. Solidarity may begin with respecting past commitments
to the Alaska Native peoples and making efforts to "satisfy their legitimate social, health and

cultural requirements. "[30]
Preferential Option for the Poor and the Vulnerable

The Christian call to solidarity is also lived out in the preferential option for the poor and
vulnerable. The option for the poor is not intended to pit people against one another; rather, it is a
recognition that the afflictions of the poor and vulnerable wound the whole community. [31] In the

life of families, it is often necessary to shower attention on one member of the family who isin need



APPENDI X | | Page 8

— an infant, an aged grandparent, or one afflicted with an illness. This focus of attention on one
family member does not diminish the family’s love of other family members, but is a recognition

that for the well being of the entire family, the focusis on the most vulnerable.

The Christian imperative to exhibit a preferential option for the poor and vulnerable is not
limited to the private sphere. This love is often most effectively manifested in the promotion of
justice. [32] Ultimately, the effectiveness of a community or political entity must be judged by how
well it protects and promotes the interests of those most vulnerable in the society. [33] In this
discussion on the future of subsistence in Alaska, it is therefore legitimate to ask, "Who are the poor

and vulnerable among us?'

Those members of the community who struggle with the indignity of severe economic
hardship merit our special care and attention. In Alaska's three major urban centers, 5-10 percent of
the population live below the poverty level; in rura areas, the percentages are much higher, with
some rural areas experiencing poverty rates as high as 39 percent. [34] Among ethnic groups, it is
Alaska Natives who are most afflicted by poverty, having the lowest per capita income in the state
and making up the largest group of Alaskans living in poverty.[35] Statewide, the percentage of
Alaska Natives living below the poverty level exceeds 20 percent. [36]

The preferential option for the poor and vulnerable is central to any discussion on the just
allocation of resources. When limitations are necessary to maintain sustainable fish and wildlife
populations, these God-given resources must be available, as far as possible, to those in the greatest

need. All Alaskans must recognize the legitimate needs of the economically disadvantaged.

In a recent poll, an overwhelming majority of Alaskans indicated their support for a rural
subsistence priority.[37] This response speaks to the understanding of Alaskans that it isin rural
areas where there is the greatest overlap between the economically poor and those whose culture is
vulnerable, and that subsistence is necessary to the maintenance of that culture. Support for a rural
subsistence priority reflects a just and generous impulse in so many Alaskans. In practice,
implementation of a rural subsistence priority may be the single most important political step in

moving toward ajust resolution of the subsistence debate.

The subsistence debate, however, must also include a discussion of the poor, both Native and
non-Native, no matter their place of residence, whether rural, suburban, or urban. Outside of rural

areas, thousands of Alaskans live in poverty within the cities and along the road system. Many are
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unemployed, and many more comprise the working poor who, despite employment, cannot earn
enough to adequately support their families. For these, supplemental assistance is often necessary to

make ends meet.

Maintaining subsistence opportunities whenever possible for the urban and suburban poor
who rely on the fish and wildlife resources can simultaneously contribute to families' economic
well-being, lessen dependence upon public assistance, and foster the sense of self-respect and
dignity that comes from providing for one's family. Any effort to guarantee subsistence

opportunities for the poor should be viewed, not as charity, but asjustice.

Subsidiarity

Pope Pius Xl first introduced the Catholic principle of subsidiarity in 1931, as an
understanding that the people most directly affected by decisions should make those decisions. [38]
The principle was most recently articulated by John Paul 11, who wrote that under subsidiarity "a
community of a higher order should not interfere in the interna life of a community of a lower
order, depriving the latter of its functions, but rather should support it in case of need and help to
coordinate its activity with the activities of the rest of society, aways with a view to the common
good” [39] Subsidiarity promotes decentralization, as well as responsibility at lower levels of social
organization. John Paul 11 wrote, "...it would appear that needs are best understood and satisfied by
people who are closest to them and who act as neighbors to those in need” [40] For instance, the
family has specific responsibilities that it does not abrogate to local government, and the local

community has duties that it does not abrogate to the state.

The state's interest in regaining its full management authority over fish and wildlife
resources on federal land is consistent with the long-standing principle of subsidiarity. [41] The
Catholic Church articulates this principle and understands it as a principle of both human society
and American governance. The principle of subsidiarity and the prudential judgment of most

Alaskans favor areturn of management to state government with local participation.[42]

Stewardship

In the very act of creation, God gave humans the responsibility to be the stewards of God's

creation for the good of the entire human family. Among all creatures, humans have a unique

relationship with the Creator and creation. "God said: 'Let us make man in our image, after our
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likeness. Let them have dominion over the fish of the sea, the birds of the air, and the cattle, over all

the wild animals and all the creatures that crawl on the ground.’” (Gen 1:26).

Subsistence, by any definition, concerns the just stewardship of the fish and wildlife
resources provided by the Creator. The resources are a gift from God, their stewardship being a

fundamental human responsibility since the beginning of time.

From carving ivory for a spearhead to etching silicon chips for computers, people have
always used the God-given resources. But the stewardship of creation is both a gift to use and a

tremendous responsibility. Men and women must harvest the world's resources wisely, with

prudence and respect, “conscious of our duties and obligations to future generations’ [43]-

Appropriate recognition of this gift requires an appreciation of and respect for both the Giver of gifts

and all of those to whom they are given, that is, the entire human family.

Stewardship of Alaska's fish and wildlife resources occurs at many levels, including
management by federal, state, and local governments, as well as by individuals. We consider, for
instance, the role of recreational hunters and sport fishermen in the context of stewardship. As many
will attest, much of the value found in hunting and fishing is experiencing and exploring the beauty
of nature. The hunting tradition is often handed down from one generation to another, and indeed,
many recreational hunters of today are only afew generations removed from the time when their
ancestors lived a subsistence lifestyle. Hunting and fishing for recreational purposesiswhere some
feel closest to God.

Those who live a subsistence lifestyle have a particularly unique relationship with nature.
Through their daily natural connection with the land and the work, they experience creation and,
with their Creator, proclaim, "It is good.” The traditional belief in Alaska Native cultures that the

animals offer themselves to the hunter, that they "sacrifice themselves,"' engenders a unigue respect

and reverence for the animals. This is manifested in rituals associated with the hunt - rituals that

communicate honor and thanks to the animal, and through the animal, to its Creator.

It must be noted that the traditional subsistence lifestyle has changed dramatically over the
past century, as the human relationship to creation has adapted to modem ways. [44] Increased
populations and contemporary tools, machines and technology brought changes in the traditional
methods of hunting and gathering, and gave rise to necessary regulations and laws to achieve a

sustainable natural bounty. It must not be forgotten, however, that God endowed nature with a
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wondrous power to communicate God's presence, power, and beauty. Future regulations must not

deprive God's children the opportunity to learn and seek inspiration from creation.
The Dignity of Work

Having been placed on earth as stewards of God's creation, it is through human labor that we
participate in this creation, expressing and increasing our human dignity. Transforming nature and
adapting it to our human needs, the very essence of work, allows us to become more fully
human.[45] Unlike the secular view of work simply as purely a matter of economics, Christians

understand work as their role in being co-creators with God.

In the prolonged debate about subsistence in Alaska, the discussion israrely couched in
terms that recognize subsistence as aform of work.. Subsistence in traditional cultures cannot be
labeled and dissected, yet the very act of harvesting fish and wildlife resources for personal or
communal consumption can, in one sense, be understood as work. Preparing fishing nets and
firearms, checking snow machine and outboard motors, hunting wild animals for food, cutting and
drying fish, and picking berries and gathering firewood are all activities that physically sustain those

residents practicing subsistence.

Measured solely in economic terms, subsistence activities have substantial value. In rural
Alaska, subsistence activities supply about 375 pounds of food per person each year with a
replacement value estimated at $131.1 - $218.6 million. [46] In urban areas, subsistence harvests
supply 22 pounds of food per person valued at $48 million.[47] The subsistence food harvest in
rural areas represents only two percent of the annual harvest in Alaska, but without these resources,

many rural communities might not survive. [48]

The value of subsistence, from a spiritual viewpoint, far transcends its economic value.
Work, while providing for the physical sustenance of oneself and one's family, has many other
dimensionsin the Catholic faith. Work corresponds to one's human dignity and expresses and
increases that dignity. Work is afoundation for the formation of family life, and the condition
making family life possible. It iswork that allows one to contribute to the common good together

with one's community.[49]

The Catholic understanding of work is mirrored in the culture of the Alaska Native peoples,

who recognize that subsistence is more than economics, "in addition to supplying food and other
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necessities, it provides people with productive labor, personal self-esteem, strong family and
community relationships, and a cultural foundation that can never be replaced”[50] The seal hunter
and the berry picker are fulfilling both the Creator's commands and their own identity at all socia

levels.

"Since work in its subjective aspect is always a personal action...it follows that the whole
person, body and spirit, participatesin it, whether it is manual or intellectual work.." [51] Alaska
Native cultures have consistently described subsistence as more than a physical activity for the
procurement of food. It is a spiritual endeavor, involving the whole person and the community,

inspiring the art, dance, story telling, and festivals of indigenous cultures.

The Church recognizes the obligation of people to work and to meet the needs of the family
and the community. Corresponding to this obligation is the right to have work opportunities
available. In the context of subsistence, focused wildlife research, justly and wisely formulated
regulations, and prudent law enforcement are all used to effectively manage fish and wildlife

resources so that opportunities for subsistence use are maintained.

Conclusion

Although Alaskas subsistence dilemma is primarily perceived and reported as a political
debate, it is ultimately a matter of Alaskans struggling to discern the right path to achieve peace and
justice, and daring to move beyond the limits imposed by the past. The task is neither easy nor
simple. There is an "urgent need to change the spiritual attitudes which define each individual's
relationship with self, with neighbor, with even the remotest human communities, and with nature

itself.” [52] Such a conversion of heart has enormous implications in the public arena.

We, the Catholic Bishops of Alaska, offer these reflections not as a solution to the
subsistence impasse, but out of alove for al people and a desire to promote human dignity and well
being. We have brought to your attention various principles of Catholic social teaching, connecting
them with the many elements of the subsistence debate. It is our hope that these principles will

become a part of the dialogue that is taking place in our state.

We urge all parties to respectfully listen to and appreciate those who hold opinions different
from their own. Discussions must continue between the sport hunter and the rural subsistence

hunter, the commercial fisherman and the guide.
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Old and young, rich and poor, newly arrived and long-time residents, Native and non-Native
- thetimeisat hand for al to search out acommon solution. We share with all alove of this great
state and an appreciation of its beauties and opportunities. We pray in finding a solution to the
subsistence impasse, we will also find solutions for other problems: poverty and the breakdown of
family life; accessibility and the limited nature of resources; personal freedom and the need to

protect nature.

In solidarity with one another and in gratitude for the treasure of creation we share, we must

come to ajust solution to the subsistence issue and emerge a stronger and more united people.

May the peace of the Lord Jesus, who camein love to set us free, be with you all.

Roger L. Schwietz, OMI
Archbishop of Anchorage

Francis T. Hurley

Archbishop Emeritus of Anchorage

Michael W. Warfel
Bishop of Juneau
Apostolic Administrator Diocese of Fairbanks

Richard D. Case, S.J.
Deputy to Apostolic Administrator
Diocese of Fairbanks

[1] "Subsistence uses" are the non-commercial, customary and traditional uses of wild, renewable
resources for direct personal or family consumption as food, shelter, fuel, clothing, tools, or
transportation, for the making and selling of handicraft articles out of non-edible by-products of fish
and wildlife resources taken for personal or family consumption, and for the customary trade, barter,
or sharing for personal or family consumption. See Alaska National Interest Lands Conservation
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Act, Sec. 803,16 U.S.C. Section 3114, Alaska Statute 15.05.940 (32).

[2] In preparation for this pastoral letter, the Alaska Catholic Conference sponsored a listening
session, "Subsistence Through the Lens of Catholic Social Teaching/' at which individuals from
many areas of Alaska and from avariety of perspectives addressed the subsistence issue. At the
listening session, we bishops learned a great deal about the issue and saw the passion and conviction
on many sides of the issue. There was a candid and honest sharing of points of view with an attempt
on the part of the speakersto hear and understand one another.

[3] Second Vatican Council, Pastoral Constitution on the Church in the Modern World (1965) 43.

[4] The impetus for enacting the Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act came from several fronts.
Alaskan and federal legislators did not want to postpone the aboriginal land claim settlements any
longer. In addition, after the 1968 discovery of oil in Prudhoe Bay, it was clear that the lack of a
land claims settlement might hinder gaining right-of-way for construction of the pipeline. Berger,
Thomas R., Village Tourney: The Report of the Alaska Native Review Commission (Hill and
Wang: New Y ork, 1985) 23-24.

[5] Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act, 43 U.S.C. Section 1603.

[6] Alaska Natives Commission Final Report, Volume IlI, Part Il, B, citing Conference Report
746,92 Congress, 1% Session, 1971, p. 37.

[7] In the Alaska Statehood Act in 1958, the federal government transferred management of fish and
wildlifein Alaskato the new state government. The Lands Act in 1980 is seen by some as a
violation of the statehood agreement. Thisis adisputed legal issue, and while acknowledged, it is
not addressed in this pastoral |etter.

[8] Alaska National Interest Lands Conservation Act, Sec. 804,16 U.S.C. Section 3114

[9] Bobby v. State of Alaska, 718 F. Supp 764 (D. Alaska 1989)
[10] David S. Case, Alaska Natives and American Laws (University of Alaska Press, 1984) 300.

[11] McDowell v. Alaska, 785 P.2d 1 (Alaska 1989) The court stated:

We therefore conclude that the requirement contained in the 1986 subsistence statute, that
one must reside in a rural area in order to participate in subsistence hunting and fishing,
violates sections 3,15, and 17 of article VIl of the Alaska Constitution.
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[12] The existing system of federal-state "dual management” is complicated by issues like
overlapping state and federal areas of jurisdiction, different eligibility criteria, permit and reporting
requirements, and the complexities of coordinating management and harvests of migrating
populations of fish and wildlife for users with different priority rights.

[13] Pope John Paul 11, Message for.the.Celebration of the World Day of Peace (1989), "To Build
Peace, Respect Minorities," 10.

[14] Robert W. Loescher, President/Chief Executive Officer of Sealaska Corp., in a speech
presented to The Alaska Federation of Native Politica Leadership Summit, February 16,1999,
"Native Subsistence Rights - Where are we now in State and National Politics?' Loescher states:

The Alaska Natives originally sought the inclusion of a "Native Preference" for the Title
VIII priority and even today it is still the deeply held feeling of Alaska Native people
everywhere that this should be the real purpose of the law. However, at the request and
urging of the State of Alaska, the Natives agreed to compromise by accepting the application
of the Title VIII priority to rural Alaska residents and dropping its application to a "Native
Preference.”

See also, Report of Conn, Stephen & Garber, Bart Kaloa, Moment of Truth: The Special
Relationship of the Federal Government to Alaska Natives and Their Tribes - Update and Issue
Analysis (1981) 27. The authors write:

The state insisted on this language [rural] to avoid problems of equal protection challenges
based on racial discrimination (i.e., protection of Native subsistence rights as opposed to
rural residents).

[15] Catechism of the Catholic Church, 2402. The universal destination of goods is the Church's
understanding that the goods of creation are destined for the entire human race.

[16] U.S. Conference of Catholic Bishops, Economic Justice for All, (1986) 74.

Catholic socia teaching does not maintain that a flat, arithmetical equality of income and wealthisa
demand of justice, but it does challenge economic arrangements that leave large numbers of people
impoverished. Further, it sees extreme inequality as a threat to the solidarity of the human
community, for great disparities lead to deep social divisions and conflict.

[17] Paul VI, A Call to Action, (1971) 23

[18] Prohibiting the sale of alcohol to minors, charging non-residents higher fees for fishing and
hunting licenses, and limiting Permanent Fund Dividends to verifiable residents are all examples of
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legally and socially acceptable disparate treatment. There are also, in our own nation's history,
countless examples of wrenchingly unjust discrimination--denying women the right to vote, the
denial of basic civil rights to people of color, and the arrest and incarceration of Japanese-
Americans during World War I1.

[19] Economic Justice for All, 69, 70, and 71.

[20] U.S. Conference of Catholic Bishops, Called to Global Solidarity/International Challenges for
U.S. Parishes, 1997.

[21] John Paul 11, On Social Concern (1987) 38.

[22] John Paul 11, "A Meeting with Native Americans,” Origins 17 (1987b) 297.

Here too | wish to urge the local churchesto be truly "catholic" in their outreach to native
peoples and to show respect and honor for their culture and al their worthy traditions.
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A Statement from The Bishop of Alaska (Episcopalian)
9/21/1999

The Episcopa Church in Alaska, a part of the 70 million-member worldwide Anglican Communion,
recognizes and endorses the God given authority to self-determination, sovereignty, and subsistence
priority of Alaska Natives. We note that these Rights are also enshrined in the many solemn
agreements between Alaska Natives and The State of Alaska and The United States of America. We
believe that the inherent authority of Alaska Natives, clearly articulated in the many people to
people agreements that endorse it, are a matter of primary and fundamental moral commitment.
Further, these God given Rights have been affirmed by many church councils over the past two
centuries and the absolutely consistent moral teaching of virtually all the churches throughout the
ages. We join with Alaska Natives in the basic and just request that the State of Alaska honor the
authority to self-determination, sovereignty, and subsistence priority that belongs to Alaska Natives
by Right and by law.!

We believe that peace, prosperity, and justice for all Alaskans is not possible unless the first rights
of Alaskasfirst peoples are honored and observed.

The Rt. Rev. Mark MacDonald
The Seventh Bishop of Alaska
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Analysisof Jerry Ward's Proposed Constitutional Amendment
May 18, 2002

The proposed amendment would amend Art. VIII of the Congtitution by adding a new
section to read as follows:

The Legislature may provide a preference to residents to take a fish or wildlife
population for subsistence use when the harvestable surplus of the fish or
wildlife population is not sufficient to provide for all beneficial uses of the fish
or wildlife population. The preference shall be accorded to residents who reside
in the vicinity of the fish or wildlife population and have customarily and
traditionally used the fish or wildlife population in arural areafor subsistence.

The proposal has the following problems:

1. . Although this amendment is being touted as providing for a "loca"
subsistence priority, the preference it authorizes would not be in place at all times- only in
times of shortages. Until there is a shortage, there would be no means for the Boards of
Fish and Game to provide special seasons or bag limits to local residents to accommodate
their customary and traditional harvest practices. Thus, as written, the amendment does not
establish atrue "local priority," because local subsistence uses need not be recognized (and
in fact may be proscribed) until there is a resource shortage.

2. The preference is not mandatory.

3. The term "in the vicinity" is vague - it will entail the drawing of boundaries
and, without seeing an implementing statute, there is no way to know how those
boundaries would be drawn. It is not worded in a way that suggests that the boundaries
would follow customary and traditional harvest areas.

4. It appears that this priority would apply only to individuals who both (1) live
"in the vicinity of the fish or wildlife* for which there is a shortage, and (2) have
"customarily and traditionally used the fish or wildlife in [that] rural areafor subsistence.”
This priority would therefore have to be based upon some set of individual characteristics
that demonstrate a personal history of use of the resource for subsistence. To be eligible for
the priority, one would have to show a personal history of use (how long? how frequent?
each population?) of the particular fish stock or game population. Such an individual-
permitting system would destroy the Native subsistence way of life.

5. The reference to "rural ared’ in the last sentence implies that there would
continue to be non-subsistence or non-rural areas within the State where subsistence
activities are not allowed. This amendment would not benefit those residents of such places
as Eklutna, Ninilchik, Saxman, or the Kenaitze Indian Tribe, since their customary and
traditional harvest areas are located, for the most part, within non-subsistence areas of the
State.

6. Onewho "customarily and traditionally used the fish or wildlife population in a
rura area for subsistence" is fundamentally different from a "rural Alaska resident.”
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ANILCA defines subsistence uses as the "customary and traditional uses of rural Alaska
residents.” The phrase "customarily and traditionally used" in the proposed amendment
refers to the user whereas the federal law speaksin terms of the uses.

7. The proposal aso lacks authorization for distinguishing among subsistence
users when there is a shortage that prevents satisfaction of all subsistence uses.

There are a number of difficulties with the concept of framing a "local" priority that will
fulfill the promise of ANILCA to protect the Native subsistence way of life. In one sense,
ANILCA does embody the "local™ concept, by defining subsistence uses as the "customary
and traditional uses of rural Alaska residents." Thus, the rural priority has always been
"local" in that it provides a priority for rural residents of communities that have customary
and traditional uses of a particular resource. If the resource is not sufficient to provide for
all the subsistence uses of those communities with recognized customary and traditional
uses, the tier 11 factors come into play and the priority is extended only to those particular
rural residents who are most dependent upon the resource (i.e., (1) "customary and direct
dependence upon the population as the mainstay of livelihood; (2) local residency; and (3)
availability of alternative resources").

The foremost difficulty with alocal priority is ensuring that the "local area" are properly
drawn. One need only look at the difficulty the State and the Federal agencies have had in
defining "rural" - a much clearer concept than "local" - to see that the State will face a
daunting task in establishing local boundaries. Over the years, a number of suggestions
have surfaced. They have ranged from defining local as residency within a given game
management unit (GMU) (Governor Hammond), to "subsistence harvest areas’ similar to
those used in the Migratory Bird Treaty Amendments (Sen. Stevens), to ANCSA regions
or areas immediately surrounding each village within the ANCSA regions. The problem, of
course, is that subsistence activities do not necessarily follow GMU boundaries, ANCSA
regions or confine themselves to areas immediately surrounding each village. For example,
Aniak is on the boarder of three GMUs. Under ANILCA's Tier |1 criteria, the term "local"
has been interpreted to mean residency in a given customary and traditional uses area - that
areamay extend far beyond the boundaries of a given village.

Senator Stevens suggestion to implement a "local" priority along the lines of the
"subsistence harvest areas’ contemplated in amendments to the Migratory Bird Treaty
between the U.S. and Canada would at |east retain the concept of customary and traditional
harvest areas. Those amendments allow for the continuation of customary and traditional
hunting of migratory birds by indigenous inhabitants of Alaska who use migratory birds
and their eggs for their own nutritional and other essential needs. The term "indigenous
inhabitants" is defined to mean Alaska Natives who are permanent residents of villages
within designated areas of Alaska where subsistence hunting of migratory birds is
customary and traditional, and includes non-Native permanent residents of these villages.
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The Subsistence Harvest Areas are described as encompassing the customary and
traditional hunting areas of villages with a customary and traditional pattern of migratory
bird harvest. Under the Migratory Bird Treaty, these areas are designated through a
deliberative process using co-management bodies that have tribal governments as co-equal
partners with the State and federal governments. A "local" priority along these lines might
be made to work, but it would open up Title VIII of ANILCA for amendments - a move
that is strongly opposed by the Native community.

The question of who draws the lines is aso critical. If it is the Alaska Boards of Fish and
Game, dominated by urban, non-subsistence user groups, the local subsistence use area for
a community like Anchorage would be extensive, and could seriously impact Copper
Center, for example.



